
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM - NORTHSIDE CIVIC CENTRE 

 
ON MONDAY 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 2.00 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
MONDAY 17 SEPTEMBER 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of NCAC meeting held on 16th July, 2018,   

 
5 - 8 

2   Minutes of Special North Central Area Committee meeting held on 26th July 2018   
 

9 - 10 

3   Questions to the Area Manager   
 

11 - 20 

4   Area Matters   
 

 

a   Resident of Artane/ Harmonstown --All Weather pitch Mc Auley Park  
Triona O’Connor 
 

 

b   Verbal Update from Boxing Officer and Presentation from  Rugby Officer  
Noel Burke, Ray Mc Cabe 
 

 

c   Update on  Glin Boxing Club  
Connell Mc Glynn 
 

21 - 22 

d   Oscar Traynor Update  
Connell Mc Glynn 
 

23 - 24 

e   Cromcastle Update  
Connell Mc Glynn 
 

25 - 26 

f   Proposed grant of Lease of the premises  55 Gracefield Road, Artane, 
Dublin 5 to Tus Nua Artane Coolock Family Resource Centre Company 
CLG  
( Report herewith) 
 

27 - 32 

g   Role of Elected members in Planning process  
( Report herewith) Bryan Ward 
 

33 - 34 

h   Webcasting of North Central Area meeting 
 

 

i   Housing Allocations Quarterly report for July 2018.  
( Report herewith) Aidan Fitzsimons, Derek Farrell 

35 - 50 



 

 
j   Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Area Committee Report  

( Report herewith) 
 

51 - 60 

k   Naming & Numbering Proposal  1-3 Castle Mews, Castle Avenue, 
Clontarf, Dublin 3 A new residential housing development on a site at the 
rear of 134-136 Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3 
 

61 - 64 

l   Naming & Numbering proposal for 2 blocks of apartments on Marrsfield 
Avenue Clongriffin-  The Mayne Building 2. The Griffin Building  
( Report to follow)Elaine Mulvenny 
 

 

5   Items for following meetings   
 

 

6   Roads and Traffic Matters   
 

 

a   Minutes of TAG meeting held on 15th August 2018 
 

65 - 74 

b   Minutes of TAG meeting held on 28th August 2018 
 

75 - 80 

7   Motions   
 

 

a   Motion in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland  
 The North Central Area Committee notes with concern the significant 
restriction in the blue bag scheme that allows local residents gather local 
green waste from public areas in particular leaf fall in autumn. This service 
allows local residents to contribute to both the safety of local footpaths 
and to the cleanliness of the public realm and therefore support our local 
public realm and parks teams.  
 
Acknowledging that the  blue bag scheme will remain open to local 
residents groups 'known' to the local area office, this committee seeks that 
the North Central Community Section to establish a Blue Bag Register 
whereby local groups can make themselves know to the Community 
Section and register their details with them so as to avail of the scheme. 
That included in this new initiative would be an advisory role whereby 
local residents can be communicated with and advised as to how they 
might from a group so as to avail of the scheme. 

 

 

b   Motion in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland  
Noting the generic responsibility that Dublin City Council and by default 
each local area office has with regard to environmental issues, the North 
Central Area Committee notes the lack of grass cutting on the lands at St. 
Paul's school now in ownership of Crekav Landbank Developments Ltd. 
and the negative impact the high growing grass will have on the ability of 
the soon returning Brent geese to feed. Therefore, the North Central Area 
Committee calls on the Area Manager and the CEO to write to Crekav 
Landbank Developments Ltd. demanding that the grass be cut so as to 
protect and prepare the environment required by the Brent Geese, and 
that these communications be copied to the Minister Josepha Madigan at 
the Department of Arts Culture and the Gaeltacht, who has responsibility 
for parks and wildlife. 

 

 

 

c   Motion in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland  
The North Central Area Committee recognises that acutely high levels of 
families and single people waiting on social housing lists within its main 
catchment area, AREA B. The North Central Area Committee notes the 
proposal to sell off some of our waste management, housing management 
and other depots (Report 161/2018 to July DCC meeting) to fund the 

 



 

depot consolidation project. These targeted depots include the waste 
management depot on the Kilmore Rd at Cromcastle Court.  While 
the North Central Area Committee recognises the benefits of 
consolidating services into a more efficient plant it rejects the selling off of 
the Cromcastle Court depot particularly given it's location next to (if not in 
the grounds of) the Cromcastle Court complex. The recent partial collapse 
of the stairwell in Block 8 of this Complex has risen its status to that of 
regeneration. The North Central Area Committee therefore calls on DCC 
CEO to remove the Cromcastle Court depot from the list of depots for 
disposal and instead include it in the Cromcastle Court Regeneration 
Project as additional land for this project. 

 
d   Motion in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney  

That the Manager, in relation to the proposal to construct a 
neighbourhood centre on the green space at Greendale, Kilbarrack, 
outline the reasons why the previously designed and agreed upgrade and 
extension of the already existing community centre on Greendale Road is 
no longer being pursued, say if he has totally ruled out the extension 
works to the existing facility, say if he is aware of the concerns of local 
residents facing the green and in particular, say if he is aware that building 
the proposed neighbourhood centre could be in breach of the Habitats 
Directive in relation to wildlife and in particular the displacement of Brent 
Geese that graze on this space. 

 

 

e   Motion in the name of Councillor Michael O'Brien  
That this area committee notes the proposal from the National Transport 
Authority to radically alter the bus routes serving the North Central Area. 
We note with particular concern the proposed loss of direct routes to the 
city centre affecting residents in Ard Na Greine, Edenmore, Harmonstown, 
Darndale, Bonnybrook, Kilmore and Artane. We support the initiative of 
residents and public representatives to form campaigns to direct pressure 
on the National Transport Authority to preserve city centre routes for all of 
these communities. 

 

 

f   Motion in the name of Councillor Naoise O'Muirí  
That the Manager provides an up-to-date report on activities/progress relating to 
the City  Farm in St Annes Park. 
 

 

 

g   Motion in the name of Councillor John Lyons  
This Area Committee calls for an independent review of the selection process 
which resulted  in the proposed wastewater treatment plant being located at 
Clonshaugh. 
 

 

 

h   Motion in the name of Councillor John Lyons  
This Area Committee calls for the reconvening of the meeting between the 
residents of Block 8 Cromcastle Court, the elected members and city council 
officials including the housing manager, Brendan Kenny as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

i   Motion in the name of Councillor John Lyons  
This Area Committee opposes the Irish Water planning application to construct on 
monster wastewater treatment plant at Clonshaugh, a proposal which will 
negatively impact upon the residential communities of the Northern Fringe. 
 

 

 

 





1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON MONDAY 16 JULY 2018 

 
 

 
 
1   Election of Chairperson 

 
Order: Councillor Ciarán O’Moore. Proposed by Councillor Deirdre Heney and 
seconded by Councillor Paddy Bourke 
 

 

2   Election of Vice Chairperson 
 
Order: Councillor Deirdre Heney. Proposed by Councillor Ciarán O’Moore and 
seconded by Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

 

3   Minutes of Meeting held on 18th June 2018 
 
Order: Agreed 
 

 

4   Questions to the Area Manager 
 
Order: Noted 
 

 

5   Area Matters   
 

 

a   Retail Study / Belmayne--Presentation and Report  
Order: Noted 
 

 

b   Disposal of site at St. Monica's Youth Centre, Tonlegee Road, Dublin 
5 Development of a new Primary Care Centre for the HSE  
Order: Special Area Committee to be held 26th July 2018 at 2.00 pm. 
 
Clarity required on the following 
 

 Traffic and Parking Issues –opposition to removal of Verge and 
Trees on Tonlegee Road 

 Governance of St. Monicas 

 Arrangements re lease for boxing club  
 

 

c   Presentation from representatives from St. Pauls Artane and St. 
Brendans Football Club  
Order: Deferred 
 

 

d   Roles of different Transport Agencies (Verbal Update)   

Page 5



2 
 

Order: Noted 
 

e   Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership  
Order: Noted 
 

 

f   Verbal Update on  Kilbarrack Playground  
Order: Parks illustrated proposals for Kilbarrack playground. 
Agreed to proceed . If difficulties encountered  Part V111 will be initiated 
 

 

g   Proposal to initiate the procedure for the Extinguishment of the 
Public Right of Way over a laneway at 1-5A Cecil Avenue & 7 Marino 
Avenue, Dublin 3.  
Order:  Agreed 
 

 

h   Naming & Numbering Proposal (1-64 Bunratty Walk)  a new Dublin 
City Council apartment development on a site adjacent to Oscar 
Traynor Road & Bunratty Road, Coolock, Dublin 17.  
Order: Agreed 
 

 

i   Naming & Numbering Proposal 1-6 Wood Ville for a new residential 
housing development on the site of 193-195 Howth Road, Clontarf, 
Dublin 3.  
Order; Agreed 
 

 

j   Update report on the Cromcastle Court complex  
Order: Noted 
 

 

6   Roads and Traffic Matters   
 

 

a   Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group 26th June 2018  
Order: Noted 
 

 

7   Planning & Development Matters   
 

 

8   Motions   
 

 

a   Motion in the name of Councillor Larry O'Toole  
Order: Report to Councillor 
 

 

b   Motion in the name of Councillor Michael O'Brien  
Order: Agreed.. Report to Councillor 
 

 

c   Motion in the name of Councillor Michael O'Brien  
Order:  Agreed.Report to Councillor  
 

 

d   Motion in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland  
Order: Report to Councillor.  
Parks to issue list  of areas weeded, litter picked and strimmed in last 6 
weeks. 
 

 

e   Motion in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland  
Order: Report to Councillor 
 

 

f   Motion in the name of Councillor Ciaran O'Moore  
Order: Report to Councillor 
 

 

g   Motion in the name of Councillor Ciaran O'Moore   

Page 6



3 
 

Order: Report to Councillor 
 

9   Items for future meetings 
 
Order: Update Glin Boxing Club 
 
Role of Elected members in Planning process 
 
Webcasting of North Central Area meeting 
 

 

 
Councillor Ciaran O'Moore 
Chairperson 
Monday 16 July 2018 
 
 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Ciaran O'Moore (Chairperson)   
Tom Brabazon Sean Paul Mahon Edel Moran 
Deirdre Heney Jane Horgan-Jones John Lyons 
Micheal Mac Donncha Michael O'Brien Damian O'Farrell 
Larry O'Toole Paddy Bourke Declan Flanagan 
Alison Gilliland   
 
Officers   
Jane O'Donoghue Deirdre Murphy Elaine Mulvenny 
Aidan Fitzsimons Derek Farrell Dympna McCann 
Yvonne Kirwan Connell McGlynn  
 
Apologies:    
   
 
Non-Members:    
   
 

Page 7



Page 8



1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON THURSDAY 26 JULY 2018 

 
 

 
 
1   Area Matters   

 
 

2   Disposal of site at St. Monica's Youth Centre, Tonlegee Road, Dublin 5. 
 
Order:  Refer the item to the full City Council meeting on Monday 3rd September, 
2018. 
 
Further details required prior to the meeting as follows: 
 
1. Information required regarding the HSE's contractual relationship with the 

developer in case of default. 
2.  Update on strengthening the governance of the committee/board of St. 

Monicas.   
 

 

 
Councillor Ciaran O'Moore 
Chairperson 
Thursday 26 July 2018 
 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Ciaran O'Moore (Chairperson)   
Tom Brabazon Deirdre Heney John Lyons 
Micheal Mac Donncha Naoise O'Muiri Michael O'Brien 
Damian O'Farrell Larry O'Toole Paddy Bourke 
Declan Flanagan Alison Gilliland  
 
Officers   
Elaine Mulvenny Dave Dinnigan Fiona Moore 
Helen McNamara Alan O'Mara Paul Clegg 
 
Non-Members:    
 Ray Daly John Daly 
 David Moore John McEvoy 
 Jacinta Higgins Tracey Davis 
 Bill Hayes Freda Cullen 
 Gavin McGowan Ken McKnight 
 Cliona Collins  

Page 9



2 
 

 

Page 10



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

17
th

 September, 2018 
 
Q.1 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “Can the traffic dept or relevant dept please look at the option of putting signage/directions for 
 Beaumont at the entrance for Skelly’s Lane Artane?  Numerous accidents have happened 
 here due to drivers been distracted looking for Beaumont Hospital.” 
 
Q.2 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.3 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
 
Q.4 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.5 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
 
Q.6 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.7 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.8 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.9 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
 
Q.10 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.11 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.12 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
  
Q.13 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 
 “To ask the manager the following question (details supplied).” 
 
 
  

Page 11



Q.14 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Following the recent upgrade of a public open space at Maypark, Donnycarney can the 
 railings bordering this park and the HSE clinic on Killester Avenue also be painted? Can the 
 rubbish bin at Maypark, Donnycarney on Killester Avenue be emptied more regularly as it is 
 constantly over flowing?  Can doggie poo bins actually be placed in the park rather than on 
 the adjacent roads given that this is where the dogs are walked? Can this park be locked up 
 at night having regard to problems of anti-social behaviour?” 
 
Q.15 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can a constant litter problem on a public open space at (details supplied) be dealt with? 
 Can the grass cutting and litter collection in this park be improved? Can nearby retail outlets 
 (details supplied) be approached to help tackle this problem given that most of the rubbish 
 originates from these stores? Can more litter bins be provided in the vicinity of these retail 
 outlets?” 
 
Q.16 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Why is the full laneway to the rear of (details supplied) not in the charge of Dublin City 
 Council? Can dumped material along the length of this laneway be removed?” 
 
Q.17 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can new windows be provided in a house (details supplied) which will open wide on hinges 
 like a door given that the current windows are very narrow and open vertically which the 
 tenant considers dangerous in the event of a fire?” 
 
Q.18 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can a grass verge at (details supplied) be reinstated following works by Irish Water? Irish 
 Water has informed me that the matter has been refereed to the Parks Department with a 
 view to completing this reinstatement.” 
  
Q.19 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can two large trees outside a house (details supplied) be pruned back substantially or 
 removed altogether given that they are completely blocking the light in the sitting room and 
 bedroom of this house?” 
 
Q.20 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can the trees in a complex (details supplied) be pruned and cut back given that they are 
 very overgrown? Can a dead tree in this complex also be removed?” 
 
  
Q.21 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can a tree at (details supplied) be dealt with? It is lifting the footpath and cracking the 
 garden wall of the adjacent house?” 
 
 
Q.22 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can low hanging branches on a cluster of trees at (details supplied) be cut given that they 
 are impeding pedestrians and motorists using the path and the road at this location?” 
 
 
 
  

Page 12



Q.23 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can the trees at (details supplied) be cut back given that they are growing wild with many 
 low hanging branches are encroaching on to the road? In addition, the trees are very tall and 
 dense and are blocking the light of an adjacent house. The density of the trees at this location 
 is perceived to be a security risk for park users. Can a machine dispensing free doggy bags 
 be put in place in this park?” 
  
Q.24 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “Can the branches of a tree at (details supplied) be cut back as the tree is very overgrown? 
 In addition, the roots of this tree are lifting the footpath causing a danger to pedestrians. Can 
 this problem also be rectified?” 
  
Q.25 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the manager to refer to housing transfer applicant as per (details supplied) confirm 
 what his placing on the transfer list is and say when he is likely to be given a transfer.”  
  
Q.26 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the manager to refer to location as per (details supplied) and say if he can have 
 same railed off in order to protect children and pets as locals residents are concerned at the 
 hazardous situation that pertains at details attached which results in dirty water being present 
 all year round.” 
  
Q.27 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the manager please advise when and on how many occasions this summer, weed 
 spraying was carried out in the general Clontarf area as residents complain about the severe 
 overgrowth of weeds on the roads and footpaths being worse than in many years.” 
 
Q.28 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the Manager please examine situation of new estate as (details supplied) and say 

a. what traffic conditions were inserted in planning approval here; will traffic 
signals/pedestrian phase at entrance be installed before estate is taken in charge 

b. what sections of details B were previously approved for DYLs, as the painted lines appear 
to have been wiped /faded in places following various works;  

c. when and what sections of DYLs at details B will be replaced 
d. say if the wide footpath at details C is a private landing as buses etc park there 

particularly on soccer match days 
e. Does the 30 kph speed limit that applies in certain estates, now apply at details B as 

there are ramps already installed on same?” 
 
Q.29 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the manager please arrange to contact (details supplied A) and direct that hazardous 
 overgrowing shrubbery that is covering traffic lights at location as (details supplied B).” 
 
Q.30 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the manager refer to development at location as per (details supplied A) and say; 

1. if he is aware of the seriously negative environmental impact that constant dust etc 
travelling inside dwellings at (details supplied B) is having on residents at location B 
attached and if he can direct adherence to planning conditions by developers at A to 
ensure dust is kept to a minimum on the entire strip of roadway fronting houses at B 
attached and not just wash down a few meters of roadway as is what is happening 
currently  

Page 13



2. If he can arrange to have shores/gullies at B cleared of gravel/sand etc as they 
causing serious flooding during rainfall, particularly at (details supplied C).” 

 
 
Q.31 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to respond to this housing maintenance issue (details supplied).” 
  
Q.32 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the area manager to respond to this housing query (details supplied).” 
  
Q.33 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to indicate when the damaged window at these premises (details 
 supplied) will be replaced.” 
  
Q.34 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to indicate when this vacant property will handed back to housing 
 (details supplied).” 
 
Q.35 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the reviewing of the effective functioning of the 
 pedestrian lights at (details supplied).” 

  
Q.36 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to arrange for a (details supplied).” 
 
Q.37 Question in the name of Councillor Tom Brabazon 
 
 “To ask the Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.38 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the Manager please refer to overgrowth on green space as per (details supplied) and 
 say if he can arrange to have same cut back severely as owner of property adjacent to 
 (details supplied) is distraught at the seriously negative effect the overgrowth is having as it 
 encroaches his property.” 
  
Q.39 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the Manager please refer to tree lined space as per (details supplied) and say if he can 
 arrange to have same cleared of debris etc as residents complain that it is in terrible 
 condition.” 
 
Q.40 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 

“Can the manager refer to the small green behind details (A) attached which was destroyed 
following the installation of a drainage pipe at details (B) attached and say if he can arrange 
to have same reinstated as requested for many months now by a constituent at (C) who has 
maintained the green space for many years now.” 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Q.41 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the Manager to please refer to location as per (details supplied) where grass growth 

is preventing children having access to play in the area and say if he will arrange to have 
same cut as soon as possible.” 

  
Q.42 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the fixing of (details supplied).” 
  
Q.43 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to provide an update on the use and maintenance of (details 
 supplied).” 
 
Q.44 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager if he will arrange for the following tree works to be carried out 
 (details supplied).” 
 
Q.45 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.46 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.47 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: For an update re: Stardust & Donaghmede Park’s. Can a clean-up of the parks be 
 carried out by DCC staff asap.” 
 
Q.48 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: Can you advise as to where the proposed Bull Island interpretive centre is to be built 
 on bull island, the details of the proposal and the proposed cost?” 
 
Q.49 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter:  To list what roads and footpaths and ramps are scheduled for repair in the North 
 Central Area for the next 6 months.” 
 
Q.50 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: Provide an update re: plans to plant new trees & planters & Shrubs in the North 
 Central Area.” 
 
Q.51 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following (details supplied) and if he will make a 
 statement on the matter.” 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 Q.52 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: To provide an update with his plan to deal with the housing list in the North Central 
 Area. How many people have been housed by social housing over the past 3 years? How 
 many houses have the council built over the past 3 years.” 
 
Q.53 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following  and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: What plans there are to deal with traffic congestion on the R139 at Darndale from 
 Bewley’s to Clayton Hotel at peak times. Are there any plans to resurface the road?” 
 
Q.54 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: Can the manager advise as to what the cost of bring centres are and the revenue 
 collected over the past 3 years and what plans there are to expand bring centres.” 
 
Q.55 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: To ask the manager for an update as to what housing projects in the north central 
 area will be completed this year and what other ones are in the pipeline for the next few 
 years.” 
 
Q.56 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following and if he will make a statement on the 
 matter: How much the clampers took in revenue for the past 3 years and how much of this 
 went to DCC. Also, how many clampers are employed by DSPS and is there clamping in the 
 north central area on a regular basis?” 
 
Q.57 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area manager to respond to the following (details supplied) and if he will make a 
 statement on the matter.” 
  
Q.58 Question in the name of Councillor Micheál MacDonncha 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.59 Question in the name of Councillor Micheál MacDonncha 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager if, in conjunction with Iarnród Éireann, we will address the growing 
 problem of DART commuters parking in residential areas in the vicinity of DART stations, 
 causing much inconvenience to local residents. In many cases cars are being parked on both 
 sides of roads, allowing only one car to pass with difficulty, causing obstruction to emergency 
 vehicles and a danger to pedestrians, especially children at and near schools. With the 
 prospect of a (welcome) improved frequency in DART services, this problem is likely to 
 escalate and needs to be seriously addressed.” 
 
Q.60 Question in the name of Councillor Micheál MacDonncha 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager for an update on progress on development of the playground in 
 Kilbarrack.” 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Q.61 Question in the name of Councillor Micheál MacDonncha 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager for an update on the proposed development of a 
 neighbourhood/community centre in Kilbarrack.” 
 
Q.62 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.63 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.64 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.65 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.66 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.67 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.68 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.69 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.70 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.71 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.72 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.73 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.74 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Q.75 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the area manager when the next playground audit will take place and if an opportunity 
 will be provided to councillors to have an input into the criteria of the audit?” 
   
Q.76 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager if the additional park bench promised to Rockfield Park in the 
 response this councillor has received in previous questions can be delivered upon. For clarity 
 the desired location of the bench on the part of residents who lobbied this councillor is the 
 high ground with its back to the tennis club facing on to the soccer pitch.” 
   
Q.77 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the area manager, to update this councillor on the progress of negotiations with local 
 stakeholders, on the future Neighbourhood Centre in Kilbarrack.” 
   
Q.78 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.79 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the area manager if the normal 10% of units have been set aside for social housing 
under Part 5 of the Planning Act in each of the phases of Parkside Belmayne both built to 
date and for future phases which have not yet been built. If there is any variation on the 10% 
for any of the phases please provide this councillor with the details.” 

 
Q.80 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the area manager if outdoor gym equipment can be installed in Rockfield Park.” 
 
Q.81 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager: 
 

1. Confirm and acknowledge receipt of correspondence (attached) dated 06/06/18 from 
(details supplied) 

2. Provide an update on potential measures that can be piloted to address the issues raised 
and give a commitment to organise an onsite meeting to discuss further.” 

 
  
Q.82 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager:  
 

1. Confirm and acknowledge receipt of email outlined below dated 10/08/2018 to DCC 
Roads and Traffic from (Details Supplied) 

2. Provide an assessment of the proposed crash-barriers as a means of improving 
public safety at this location.” 

 
 
Q.83 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager please organise for double-yellow lines to be installed on Grace Park Road 
 at the entrance point to Grace Park Woods from Grace Park Road as irregular car-parking at 
 this location is making it difficult for those coming from Grace Park Woods to exit safely onto 
 Grace Park Road.” 
 
 

Page 18



Q.84 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager please organise for the potholes in the public cark park opposite St 
 Anthony’s Church, Clontarf Road to be repaired.” 
 
Q.85 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “There has been a substantial increase in the volume of traffic using Conquer Hill Road in 
 recent times. Can the Manager please organise for the following traffic calming measures to 
 be implemented: 
 1. The ramp outside No. 54 Conquer Hill Road needs to be raised so as to become more of a 
 deterrent to speeding 
 2. An additional ramp needed between this location and the Kincora Road junction for 
 effective traffic calming.” 
 
Q.86 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager please organise for Kilbride Road to be assessed for traffic calming 
 measures as it is currently the target of substantial rat-running.” 
 
Q.87 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager please address the following concerns that were raised by a local resident 
 in relation to access via the Causeway to the North Bull Island? 
 

1. Is the left hand lane going down Watermill Rd when you cross James Larkin Road still 
configured to be a straight-ahead lane as well as a left turn – this is unclear and 

2. Can some sort of drop-off zone be provided for families at the roundabout at the end of 
the Causeway as on busy days it is very difficult to get children down given current 
parking arrangements?” 

 
Q.88 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Further to my previous requests in relation to removal of shrubbery at Bram Stoker Park can 
 the Manager: 
 

1. Provide me with a DCC contact point who would help organise a litter-pick with the 
Marino Residents Association 

2. Consider the installation of flower-beds inside the railings where shrubs have been 
cleared away as this would greatly improve the attractiveness of the park.” 

 
Q.89 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “There are unresolved issues where the upgraded S2S cycleway meets the Bull Wall roadway 
 as follows: 
 

1. The cycleway comes directly onto the footpath bringing cyclists into conflict with 
pedestrians; some sort of chicane is required in order that speed is reduced at this 
location 

2. Are cyclists obliged to dismount at this location? If so related signage needs to be greatly 
improved.” 

 
Q.90 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager please organise for an inspection of the laneway running behind 85-89 
 Seapark Drive? There is concern that it is the target of regular local dumping.” 
 
Q.91 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 

Page 19



Q.92 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.93 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.94 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.95 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.96 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.97 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.98 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.99 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
  

 

Page 20



Up date on boxing facility at Glin Sports centre 

 

 

The Area Office is committed to developing a boxing facility in the Glin Sports Centre. Discussions are 

ongoing with the Sports Department and an application for capital funding will be made during the 

budgetary process. It is not possible to provide any more information at this point but any progress on 

the matter will be made known to the local councillors 

 

Connell Mc Glynn  

Page 21





Oscar Traynor updates 
 North Central Area committee 

 
 
Latest up date on Oscar Traynor lands 
 

 7 Developers  expressed an interest for the Oscar Traynor Project and completed the PQQ 
 

 6 Developers were successful and are listed below.  
 

 Alcove 

 Alanna 

 BAM 

 Bartra 

 Chartered Land 

 Glenveagh Living 
 

 ITPD (Invitation To Participate In Dialogue) will be issued in due course  when the project 
team have completed the ITPD for O’Devaney Gardens  
 
As part of the ITPD it is expected to have work shops instead of the regular Forum meetings, 
this will give an opportunity to discuss current plans and ideas with the planners and 
architects for the Oscar Traynor project. 
 
DCC Planning Department are scheduling a meeting with  the Department of education 
about future needs in the area and will schedule follow up meeting with Gaelscoil Colmcille  
to discuss findings.   
 
No date for  issuing of ITPD for Oscar Traynor until similar process has finished in 
O’Devaney Gardens    
 

Contact  
Project manager Hugh McKenna       01 2226041 
hugh.mckenna@dublincity.ie  

Page 23





 

Cromcastle up date 17/09/18 

 

Stairs  

All stair works have been completed  

Extra community activities that have been in operation in Kilmore Community Centre during 

refurbishment works have now come to an end. 

Maintenance  

A maintenance program is still in place in Cromcastle Court  and will remain in place until the back log 

is cleared, anyone with outstanding maintenance complaints should contact the Darndale Area office 

on  01  2226930. 

Roofing and heating issues are the main issues  to be addressed 

Regeneration  

A Project Manager has been appointed to Cromcastle Court to coordinate the start of the 

regeneration process.  

As Cromcastle Court has been selected for Regeneration all allocations into Cromcastle Court has 

been stopped. 

Allocations to resident in Cromcastle Court will still be made under the Scheme of letting priorities.  

The new project manager will make contact with each resident in the near future to discuss the plans 

for the area and to examine the needs of all residents on an individual basis. 

A new community forum is to be established for all  residents in the Cromcastle Estate, if you wish to 

become involved in the  forum you can register your interest by emailing the project manager directly 

on connell.mcglynn@dublincity.ie or calling 01 2228844. 

 

Thanks  

Connell McGlynn 

Project Manager  

connell.mcglynn@dublincity.ie 

 

Page 25

mailto:connell.mcglynn@dublincity.ie
mailto:connell.mcglynn@dublincity.ie




 
Development Department, 

Civic Offices. 
 

2nd August 2018 
 

 
To:  The Chairman and Members of  
North  Central Area Committee 
 
 

Meeting: 17th September 2018  
 
Item No. 
 

     
With reference to the proposed grant of Lease of the premises  55 Gracefield Road, 
Artane, Dublin 5 to Tus Nua Artane Coolock Family Resource Centre Company CLG 
 

 
By way of lease datd 10th February 2015 the premises at 55 Gracefield Road, Artane, 
Dublin 5, shown coloured pink with right of way for access purposes shown yellow on Map 
Index No. SM2011-0559, was demised by Dublin City Council to Tus Nua Artane Coolock 
Family Resource Centre CLG (formerly  Artane Coolock Resource & Development Centre 
Limited) for a term of 3 years from 1st October 2013.  The Lease expired on 30th 
September 2016. 
 
The Chief Valuer has reported that he has reached agreement for the grant of  a  further 
lease of 55 Gracefield Road subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. The site to be leased is at 55 Gracefield Road as outlined in red on attached Map 
Index No: SM2011-0559. 
 

2. That the Council shall grant Tus Nua Artane Coolock Family Resource Centre CLG 
a lease for a term of 5 years commencing on the 1st October 2016. 

 
3. The annual market rent reserved shall be the sum of €12,000 (twelve thousand 

euro).  This rent reserved shall be abated to €3,000 (three thousand euro) per 
annum in accordance with term 10 “Use” below.  

 
4. The lessee shall be responsible for any V.A.T or other taxes due to the creation of 

this lease (if applicable). 
 

5. The Lessee will comply at all times with the requirements of the Local Government 
(Planning and Development Acts 1963-2000, the Planning and Development Act 
2000, the Building Control Act 1990, Building Regulations 1991-12994 and the 
Building Control Regulations 1997 and any amendments or re-enactments currently 
in force, or to be re-enacted in the future in respect of the said Acts and Regulations. 
 

6. That any signage if permitted shall be subject to Council approval and shall be in 
accordance with the specifications of the Council. 

 
7. That the lessee shall be prohibited from erecting any mast on the demised property. 

 

Page 27



8. That the lessee shall not carry out any alteration or development of the property or 
erect any structure or make any excavation without the prior written consent of the 
Council. 
 

9. That the applicant shall comply at all times with the requirements of all present and 
future Waste Management and Litter Pollution legislation. 
 

10. That the demised premises shall be used solely by the lessee for the purposes of a 
Family Resource Centre. In the event of the demise ceasing to be used for such 
purposes it shall revert free of charge to the Council or to the appropriate open 
market yearly rent as determined by the Council’s Valuer. 
 

11. That the lessee shall be responsible for the internal and external repair and 
maintenance of the demised property. 
 

12. An authorised Council Official shall be permitted to enter onto the property at any 
time and view the state and condition of the property and if necessary prepare a 
schedule of dilapidations and the necessary works (if any) shall be carried out by the 
Lessee within a reasonable period of time as stated by the Council. 
 

13. That the lessee shall not sell, assign, grant any sub interests, sub-divide, alienate or 
part with the possession of the subject property without the prior written consent of 
the Council. In the event that any part of the property is assigned or sublet, the open 
market yearly rent reserved under the lease shall be payable to the Council. 
 

14. That the lessee shall insure and keep insured the property in a sum equivalent to 
the full replacement value, at all times in the joint names of the Council and the 
lessee against loss or damage by fire or other cause in an established insurance 
office to be approved by the Council and to pay all premiums or such sum of money 
necessary for that purpose and within 7 days after the same has become payable to 
produce to the Council the policy or policies of such insurance and the receipt for 
every such payment. In the event of loss or damage by fire or other cause, the 
lessee are obliged to reinstate the property and every part thereof to it’s original 
state. Or in the alternative in the event of Dublin City Council insuring the property 
reimburse the Council the proportion of insurance applicable to the percentage of 
the property occupied by the Lessee. 

 
15. That the lessee shall indemnify the Council in respect of any claims for injury or 

damage to any person or property through the use of the property. 
 

16. The lessee shall be responsible for the payment of all outgoings including rates, 
charges, fees, electricity bills etc. that may become due on the premises during the 
period of the lease 
 

17. That in the event of the Lessee failing to comply with any of the terms, conditions, 
warranties, covenants or the obligations and stipulations herein contained or 
becoming dissolved or going into liquidation, the Council may revoke this Agreement 
by giving the Lessees notice in writing to that effect or unless otherwise stated in 
such Notice, this agreement shall cease immediately upon such Notice having been 
given. 

 
18. That the letting can be terminated by either party on giving the other one months 

notice in writing. 
 

Page 28



19. That the tenant will be required to sign a Deed of Renunciation as part of this 
agreement. 
 

20. That the Lessee shall include any amendments and/or other conditions as are 
deemed appropriate by the Council or Law Agent. 
 

21. That each party shall be responsible for their own costs in this matter. 

 
22. That the Council shall retain a right to wayleaves for no consideration, through any 

lands included in the lease or any related areas. 
 

 
 

 
 

Richard Shakespeare 
Assistant Chief Executive  
 

Page 29





Page 31





 

                                                                                         
 
 
 
Planning and Property Development Department 
Block 4, Floor 3, 
Civic Offices, 
Woodquay.        10th September 2018 
                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                         
                                                               
To the Chairperson and Members of 
The North Central Area Committee 
 
Meeting: 17th September 2018  
Item No: 
 
 
With reference to the July Area Committee meeting set out below is the role of the 
elected members in the planning process as requested. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Role of the Elected Members in the Planning Process 

 

The elected members have a statutory responsibility for the following in the planning process 

ie reserved functions: 

 

City Development Plan 

Review, make and vary City Development Plan (including Architectural Conservation 

Areas). 

 

Strategic Development Zones 

Make subject to variations and modifications a draft planning scheme. 

  

Local Area Plans 

Elected members make, amend or revoke a Local Area Plan. 

Resolution must be passed by not less than half the members of the planning authority. 

 

Record of Protected Structures 

Make additions and deletions to the record of protected structures. 

 

Area of Special Planning Control 

Make, amend or revoke a special planning control scheme for an ACA or for part of an ACA. 

 

While it is the function of the elected members to make statutory plans for the city including 

the development plan, planning schemes for strategic development zones and local area 

plans, it is the function of the executive to implement these plans through the development 

management process. In this regard elected members are entitled to make submissions and to 

Page 33



be kept informed on particular applications but responsibility for deciding on planning 

applications (excluding SHDs and SIDs) rests clearly with the Chief Executive or an officer 

to whom the function has been delegated.   

In relation to Strategic Housing Development applications the elected members views are 

communicated to An Bord Pleanala.   

 

Part 8 Applications 

Approval or rejection of a Part 8 (local authority development/works) proposal. 

 

Development Contributions 

Make and review development contribution schemes. 

 

 

Bryan Ward 

Senior Planner  

Tel:  222 6169 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 34



1 
 

 
HOUSING ALLOCATIONS QUARTERLY REPORT JULY 2018 

CURRENT WAITING LIST STATISTICS AND LATEST LETTINGS REPORT  
 
               JULY 2018 
 
 
 
 

Contents - 
Tables 1 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 
Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 5 (a) - JULY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
Table 5 (b)-JULY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 6 - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY & MONTH 
Table 7 - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 
Table 7 (a) JAN TO JUNE 2018 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
Tables 8(a)(b)  - JAN TO JUNE 2018 DCC, LEASING AND VOLUNTARY LETTINGS LIST FIGURES  
Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
Tables 10 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
 
 
 
 
  
 

P
age 35



2 
 

 
Tables 1 (a) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

TABLE 1 (a)

BAND 1 HOUSING Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Traveller Priority 58 18 19 1 34 7 1 138

Housing Medical Priority 63 5 29 16 13 18 8 15 10 2 179

Housing Medical Priority older person 8 1 8 8 3 3 1 8 4 3 47

Welfare Priority 24 1 6 8 11 14 4 2 1 71

Welfare Priority older person 3 1 2 1 2 2 2 1 14

Homeless Priority 685 179 362 371 198 139 167 91 67 28 2287

Homeless Priority older person 26 4 14 10 13 5 9 23 11 3 118

Band 1 Grand Total 867 208 439 416 273 188 189 141 95 38 2854

BAND 2 HOUSING Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 2 Housing List 1445 304 938 575 597 577 425 325 373 76 5635

Band 2 Housing List older person 75 7 73 57 27 29 31 43 72 10 424

Band 2 Grand Total 1520 311 1011 632 624 606 456 368 445 86 6059

BAND 3 HOUSING Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 3 Housing List 2168 319 1255 581 628 604 433 363 487 96 6934

Band 3 Housing List older person 236 21 156 92 79 71 55 60 120 15 905

Band 3 Grand Total 2404 340 1411 673 707 675 488 423 607 111 7839

Total HOUSING LIST TOTAL 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

JULY 2018 Transfer Waiting List figures by Band Category

Band 1

Band 2

Band 3

P
age 36



3 
 

Tables 1 (b)(c) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 

 

 

 

 

TABLE 1 (b)

BAND 1 TRANSER LIST Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Surrendering Larger priority 12 8 19 11 22 10 17 12 6 5 122

Transfer HAP Band 1 500 88 269 135 153 119 84 48 60 16 1472

Transfer HAP Band 1 Older Person 12 1 8 6 3 3 3 3 2 41

Transfer Medical priority 39 3 22 19 14 15 18 16 1 9 156

Transfer Medical priority older person 7 2 9 14 9 8 13 7 2 1 72

Transfer Welfare priority 44 13 40 23 43 31 24 17 6 5 246

Transfer Welfare priority older person 3 7 4 10 1 7 7 4 43

Band 1 Transfer List Grand Total 617 115 374 212 254 187 166 110 81 36 2152

BAND 2 TRANSFER LIST Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 2 Transfer List 289 53 230 214 185 192 193 140 62 40 1598

Band 2 Transfer List older person 76 7 79 46 22 34 15 43 37 8 367

Band 2 Transfer List Grand Total 365 60 309 260 207 226 208 183 99 48 1965

BAND 3 TRANSFER LIST Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 3 Transfer List 1176 192 779 470 491 439 460 289 183 108 4587

Band 3 Transfer List older person 76 42 83 62 76 37 70 44 54 16 560

Band 3 Transfer List Grand Total 1252 234 862 532 567 476 530 333 237 124 5147

Total TRANSFER LIST TOTAL 2234 409 1545 1004 1028 889 904 626 417 208 9264

TABLE 1 (c)

Waiting List Code Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

HOUSING LIST TOTAL 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

TRANSFER LIST TOTAL 2234 409 1545 1004 1028 889 904 626 417 208 9264

COMBINED GRAND TOTAL 7025 1268 4406 2725 2632 2358 2037 1558 1564 443 26016

JULY 2018 Transfer Waiting List figures by Band Category

Band 1

Band 2

Band 3

JULY 2018 Combined Waiting List Figures by Band Category

P
age 37



4 
 

Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 

 

 

 

 

Time on List Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

0 to 1 year 809 126 385 205 229 223 151 105 116 12 2361

1 to 5 years 1845 315 1029 655 591 535 421 344 384 62 6181

5 to 10 years 1622 305 1039 609 576 511 381 342 423 80 5888

over 10 years 515 113 408 252 208 200 180 141 224 81 2322

HOUSING TOTAL 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

Time on List Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

0 to 1 year 254 35 167 80 91 77 67 58 23 7 859

1 to 5 years 826 153 503 319 323 232 264 172 143 38 2973

5 to 10 years 657 154 479 319 321 309 301 211 123 62 2936

over 10 years 497 67 396 286 293 271 272 185 128 101 2496

TRANSFER TOTAL 2234 409 1545 1004 1028 889 904 626 417 208 9264

Time on List Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

0 to 1 year 1063 161 552 285 320 300 218 163 139 19 3220

1 to 5 years 2671 468 1532 974 914 767 685 516 527 100 9154

5 to 10 years 2279 459 1518 928 897 820 682 553 546 142 8824

over 10 years 1012 180 804 538 501 471 452 326 352 182 4818

COMBINED TOTAL 7025 1268 4406 2725 2632 2358 2037 1558 1564 443 26016

JULY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Waiting Time TABLE 2 (a)

JULY 2018 TRANSFER Waiting List figures by Waiting Time TABLE 2 (b)

JULY 2018 COMBINED Waiting List figures by Waiting Time TABLE 2 (c)

P
age 38



5 
 

Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
 

 
 
 
 

Bedsize Required Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

1 Bed 2379 393 1412 1219 771 715 785 614 760 140 9188

2 Bed 1779 325 1013 364 610 500 236 252 265 58 5402

3 Bed 595 126 395 123 201 210 88 57 108 32 1935

4 Bed 36 10 34 12 17 38 19 7 12 5 190

5 Bed 2 5 7 3 5 6 5 2 2 37

Housing List Total 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

Bedsize Required Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

1 Bed 628 148 479 469 343 229 466 319 221 84 3386

2 Bed 1003 161 650 323 422 375 269 191 138 86 3618

3 Bed 536 81 367 191 224 245 151 105 51 33 1984

4 Bed 60 18 43 17 33 38 16 11 6 4 246

5 Bed 7 1 6 4 6 2 2 1 1 30

Transfer List Total 2234 409 1545 1004 1028 889 904 626 417 208 9264

Bedsize Required Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

1 Bed 3007 541 1891 1688 1114 944 1251 933 981 224 12574

2 Bed 2782 486 1663 687 1032 875 505 443 403 144 9020

3 Bed 1131 207 762 314 425 455 239 162 159 65 3919

4 Bed 96 28 77 29 50 76 35 18 18 9 436

5 Bed 9 6 13 7 11 8 7 2 3 1 67

Combined List Total 7025 1268 4406 2725 2632 2358 2037 1558 1564 443 26016

JULY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Bedsize Req TABLE 3 (a)

JULY 2018 TRANSFER Waiting List figures by Bedsize Req TABLE 3 (b)

JULY 2018 COMBINED Waiting List figures by Bedsize Req TABLE 3 (c)

P
age 39



6 
 

Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Singles 168 26 119 94 44 47 65 39 64 12 678

Couples 2422 466 1452 501 839 757 348 319 390 94 7588

Families 2201 367 1290 1126 721 665 720 574 693 129 8486

Housing total 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

JULY 2018 TRANSFER Waiting List figures by Family Size

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Singles 85 17 63 50 56 31 56 41 26 13 438

Couples 1607 261 1065 535 684 663 439 311 197 126 5888

Families 542 131 417 419 288 195 409 274 194 69 2938

Transfer Total 2234 409 1545 1004 1028 889 904 626 417 208 9264

JULY 2018 COMBINED Waiting List figures by Family Size

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Singles 253 43 182 144 100 78 121 80 90 25 1116

Couples 4029 727 2517 1036 1523 1420 787 630 587 220 13476

Families 2743 498 1707 1545 1009 860 1129 848 887 198 11424

Combined Total 7025 1268 4406 2725 2632 2358 2037 1558 1564 443 26016

JULY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Family Size TABLE 4 (a)

TABLE 4 (b)

TABLE 4 (c)

P
age 40



7 
 

Table 5 (a) - JULY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
 

 
 

JULY 2018 Housing List Figures by Bedsize requirement and Time on List

Size Years Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

One bed 0 to 1 year 471 63 239 153 134 142 112 62 84 8 1468

1 to 5 years 982 166 549 471 325 275 292 229 250 39 3578

5 to 10 years 742 125 484 428 245 232 257 223 287 49 3072

over 10 years 184 39 140 167 67 66 124 100 139 44 1070

One Bed Total 2379 393 1412 1219 771 715 785 614 760 140 9188

Two Bed 0 to 1 year 277 50 126 41 91 66 29 38 26 4 748

1 to 5 years 690 116 370 137 225 197 100 97 100 19 2051

5 to 10 years 624 125 378 139 235 182 87 91 97 20 1978

over 10 years 188 34 139 47 59 55 20 26 42 15 625

Two bed Total 1779 325 1013 364 610 500 236 252 265 58 5402

Three Bed 0 to 1 year 58 12 15 10 4 15 9 4 6 133

1 to 5 years 162 27 99 39 36 53 25 17 30 4 492

5 to 10 years 243 52 164 39 92 78 30 26 36 8 768

over 10 years 132 35 117 35 69 64 24 10 36 20 542

Three Bed Total 595 126 395 123 201 210 88 57 108 32 1935

Four Bed 0 to 1 year 2 3 1 1 1 8

1 to 5 years 11 4 10 7 4 9 3 1 4 53

5 to 10 years 12 1 12 2 3 18 5 2 2 3 60

over 10 years 11 5 9 2 10 11 10 3 6 2 69

Four bed Total 36 10 34 12 17 38 19 7 12 5 190

Five Bed 0 to 1 year 1 1 2 4

1 to 5 years 2 1 1 1 1 1 7

5 to 10 years 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 10

over 10 years 3 1 3 4 2 2 1 16

Five Bed Total 2 5 7 3 5 6 5 2 2 37

Grand Total 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

TABLE 5 (a)

P
age 41



8 
 

Table 5 (b)-JULY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 

 

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Single 2201 367 1290 1126 721 665 720 574 693 129 8486

Single + 1 953 173 555 175 369 283 121 138 117 25 2909

Single + 2 501 128 327 91 165 170 49 39 54 19 1543

Single + 3 159 38 94 28 49 64 13 13 20 9 487

Single + 4 29 7 22 8 9 16 3 4 5 4 107

Single + 5 4 1 10 2 2 5 2 3 2 31

Single + 6 2 1 1 3 1 1 9

Single + 7 1 1 2

Singles Total 3850 714 2299 1431 1318 1204 910 768 892 188 13574

Coiuple 168 26 119 94 44 47 65 39 64 12 678

Couple + 1 238 32 105 60 53 56 47 53 58 18 720

Couple + 2 333 45 200 69 96 68 55 42 77 9 994

Couple + 3 149 26 83 40 58 47 31 14 32 5 485

Couple + 4 40 5 37 17 24 25 11 9 17 2 187

Couple + 5 9 6 7 6 8 13 7 5 4 1 66

Couple + 6 4 1 5 2 3 6 4 1 1 27

Couple + 7 2 4 1 1 2 1 2 13

Couple + 8 2 1 1 1 5

Couple + 9 1 1 2

Couple + 10 1 1

Couples Total 941 145 562 290 286 265 223 164 255 47 3178

Housing list Total 4791 859 2861 1721 1604 1469 1133 932 1147 235 16752

JULY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Family Size TABLE 5 (b)

P
age 42



9 
 

 

Table 6 - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY AND MONTH 
 

P
age 43



10 
 

January - June 2018 Total Lettings

Category Of Award          HOUSING LIST           TRANSFER LIST Table 6

Jan Feb Mar April May June Jan Feb Mar April May June
Combined 

Total

Medical 1 4 5 3 3 6 3 3 3 3 6 5 45

Welfare 3 3 4 5 9 7 7 6 1 3 3 3 54

Traveller priority 4 2 1 2 3 1 13

Fire Emergency 8 2 10

Surrendering Larger 2 1 2 2 4 3 14

BAND Tied Accommodation 1 1

1 Detenanting 1 1 6 1 1 10

Estate Management 

Essential Maintenance

Transfer Hap Priority 1 2 2 3 3 3 14

Homeless Priority 28 15 11 16 27 20 117

Financial Contribution 1 1

Regeneration 1 1

Band 1 Total 36 24 22 28 42 34 14 21 10 17 17 15 280

BAND 2 Band 2 19 11 6 17 19 19 9 8 9 5 8 8 138

BAND 3 Band 3 7 9 7 7 15 8 12 12 10 16 28 8 139

Lettings by Month 62 44 35 52 76 61 35 41 29 38 53 31 557

TOTAL HOUSING/TRANSFER LIST 330 227 557

Combined Housing  & Transfer Total 557

Other Lists not in Bands

Mortgage to Rent 12

RAS 3

Overall total Incl RAS and MTR 572

 
Table 7 - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 

P
age 44



11 
 

Table 7

Priority or Points Housing Transfer Grand  Medical Priority Cases Housed in Jan-June 2018

Detenanting 10 10 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total

Financial Contribution 1 1 Intellectual 1 1 2

Fire Emergency 10 10 Mental Health 1 1

Homeless Priority 117 117 Physical 15 16 31

Medical Priority 22 23 45 Sensory 1 1 2

Band 1 Regeneration 1 1 Grand Total 16 18 34

Surrender Larger 14 14

Transfer Hap priority 14 14 Other Cases Housed with disabilities Jan - June 2018

Tied Accommodation 1 1 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total

Traveller Priority 13 13 Intellectual 4 4

Welfare Priority 31 23 54 Mental Health 11 1 12

Grand Total 186 94 280 Physical 17 3 20

Sensory 3 2 5

Band 2 Band 2 91 47 138 Grand Total 35 6 41

Band 3 Band 3 53 86 139 Total Cases Housed with disability attached Jan - June 2018

Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total

Combined Housing  & Transfer Total 330 227 557 Intellectual 5 2 7

Mental Health 11 2 13

Combined Housing  & Transfer Total 557 Physical 37 22 59

Other Lists not in Bands Sensory 4 3 7

Mortgage to Rent 12 Grand Total 57 29 86

RAS 3

Overall total Incl RAS and MTR 572

Table 7 (a) JAN TO JUNE 2018 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
Table 7 (a)

Homeless Housed by 

Family Size

Central 

Area

North Central 

Area

North West 

Area

South Central 

Area

South East 

Area

Grand 

Total

Singles 15 8 8 9 20 60

Couples 2 2 4

Families 10 12 13 13 5 53

Grand Total 27 22 21 22 25 117  
Tables 8 (a)(b)  - JAN TO JUNE 2018 DCC, LEASING AND VOLUNTARY LETTINGS LIST  

P
age 45



12 
 

 
DCC UNITS                                            HOUSING LIST LETTINGS JAN - JUNE 2018 Table 8 (a)

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Financial Contribution 1 1

Homeless Priority 11 2 11 6 7 1 7 13 3 3 64

BAND 1 Medical Priority 1 4 2 3 2 1 1 3 17

Regeneration 1 1

Tied Accommodation 1 1

Traveller Priority 3 4 2 2 11

Welfare Priority 1 3 5 2 4 3 2 1 2 23

Band 1Total 13 12 17 15 11 8 12 17 5 8 118

BAND 2 Housing List Band 2 13 7 10 5 11 2 13 9 1 2 73

BAND 3 Housing List Band 3 14 3 10 3 6 3 2 1 2 44

Housing list DCC Units Total 40 22 37 23 28 13 27 27 6 12 235

VOLUNTARY UNITS Voluntary

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Homeless Priority 11 4 7 14 2 1 9 4 1 53

BAND 1 Medical Priority 1 1 1 1 1 5

Traveller Priority 1 1 2

Welfare Priority 1 3 1 2 1 8

Band 1Total 14 4 8 19 4 1 11 5 1 1 68

BAND 2 Housing list Band 2 3 5 5 4 1 18

BAND 3 Housing list Band 3 1 1 3 2 1 1 9

Housing List Voluntary Units Total 15 4 12 27 4 1 18 10 3 1 95

Housing list  Total 55 26 49 50 32 14 45 37 9 13 330  
*RAS, MORTGAGE TO RENT OR HAP tenancy figures not included in the above tables 
 

P
age 46



13 
 

DCC UNITS                                           TRANSFER LIST LETTINGS JAN - JUNE 2018 Table 8 (b)

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Detenanting 2 1 7 10

Fire Emergency 9 1 10

Medical Priority 3 2 6 4 1 2 18

Surrender Larger 2 3 2 3 1 1 1 13

Transfer HAP Priority 7 1 2 3 1 14

Welfare Priority 1 1 2 3 7 2 3 1 20

Band 1 Total 22 5 7 16 11 3 8 3 10 85

BAND 2 Transfer List Band 2 Total 9 1 8 2 8 2 3 1 1 1 36

BAND 3 Transfer List Band 3 Total 7 8 11 7 5 2 10 7 5 62

Transfer List DCC Units Total 38 14 26 25 24 7 21 11 1 16 183

SOCIAL LEASING UNITS Leasing

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

BAND 3 Transfer List Band 3 Total 2 1 2 1 1 7

Transfer list Social Leasing Total 2 1 2 1 1 7

VOLUNTARY UNITS Voluntary

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Medical Priority 1 3 1 5

BAND 1 Surrender Larger 1 1

Welfare Priority 1 1 1 3

Transfer List Band 1 Total 1 1 5 1 1 9

BAND 2 Transfer List Band 2 Total 1 5 3 2 11

BAND 3 Transfer List Band 3 Total 2 1 4 5 1 3 1 17

Transfer List Voluntary Total 3 1 6 15 1 7 4 37

Combined Housing & Transfer Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Housing List  Total 55 26 49 50 32 14 45 37 9 13 330

Transfer List  Total 41 15 34 41 27 8 28 15 2 16 227

Combined  Total 96 41 83 91 59 22 73 52 11 29 557  
*RAS, MORTGAGE TO RENT OR HAP tenancy figures not included in the above tables 
 

P
age 47



14 
 

Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
 
Housing List Lettings Jan- June 2018 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (a)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 10 12 11 5 2 4 17 2 2 65

1 Bed 12 4 10 20 7 3 13 9 6 7 91

2 Bed 11 12 11 15 14 4 22 10 1 3 103

3 Bed 19 9 14 4 6 5 5 1 1 64

4 Bed 3 1 2 1 7

Housing List Total 55 26 49 50 32 14 45 37 9 13 330

Transfer List Lettings Jan- June 2018 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (b)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 15 1 2 1 2 1 3 1 26

1 Bed 10 7 13 17 9 3 8 7 7 81

2 Bed 3 2 5 21 8 5 15 5 1 4 69

3 Bed 12 4 14 2 6 2 3 43

4 Bed 1 1 2 2 2 8

Transfer List Total 41 15 34 41 27 8 28 15 2 16 227

Combined Housing & Transfer List Lettings Jan- June 2018 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (c)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 25 1 14 12 7 2 5 20 3 2 91

1 Bed 22 11 23 37 16 6 21 16 6 14 172

2 Bed 14 14 16 36 22 9 37 15 2 7 172

3 Bed 31 13 28 6 12 5 7 1 4 107

4 Bed 4 2 2 2 3 2 15

Combined Total 96 41 83 91 59 22 73 52 11 29 557  
 
* RAS, Mortgage to Rent or HAP tenancy figures not included in the above tables 
Tables 10 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2018 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 

P
age 48



15 
 

 
Housing List Lettings Jan- June 2018 by Letting Category and Area Housed Table 10 (a)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 1 1

Maisonettes 1 3 4

New Refurbished House 1 1

Newbuild House 11 2 13

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 2 9 2 9 8 25 6 2 63

Previously Occupied (House) 5 9 7 1 8 5 1 36

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 10 2 11 2 5 3 1 1 35

Senior Citizen Existing unit 12 16 10 4 5 21 6 8 82

Voluntary Housing 15 4 12 27 4 1 18 10 3 1 95

Housing list Total 55 26 49 50 32 14 45 37 9 13 330

Transfer List Lettings Jan- June 2018 by Letting Category and Area Housed Table 10 (b)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Maisonettes 2 1 3

New Refurbished House 1 1

Newbuild House 1 1

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 5 1 10 7 1 15 4 2 45

Previously Occupied (House) 5 2 4 6 5 4 3 1 3 33

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 10 2 9 2 5 4 32

Senior Citizen Existing unit 22 3 11 7 5 2 3 6 1 7 67

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 1 1

Social Leasing 2 1 2 1 1 7

Voluntary Housing 3 1 6 15 1 7 4 37

Grand Total 41 15 34 41 27 8 28 15 2 16 227

Combined Housing & Transfer List Lettings Jan- June 2018 by Letting Category and Area Housed Table 10 (c)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 1 1

Maisonettes 2 1 4 7

New Refurbished House 1 1 2

Newbuild House 12 2 14

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 2 14 3 19 15 1 40 10 4 108

Previously Occupied (House) 10 11 11 7 13 9 3 1 4 69

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 20 4 20 4 10 3 1 5 67

Senior Citizen Existing unit 34 3 27 17 9 7 3 27 7 15 149

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 1 1

Social Leasing 2 1 2 1 1 7

Voluntary Housing 18 5 18 42 5 1 25 14 3 1 132

Grand Total 96 41 83 91 59 22 73 52 11 29 557  
* RAS, Mortgage to Rent or HAP tenancy figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 49





 

NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP 

18TH SEPTEMBER 2018 

  
DUBLIN SPORTSFEST 2018 
 
From the 23rd to the 30th of September, 2018, the first ever Dublin Sportsfest will bring together 
the people, the clubs, the sports and the spaces of Dublin in a celebration of sport and physical 
activity in our City. 
 
The appetite for sport & sporting events amongst Irish people is the stuff of legend. Sport is part of 
the fabric of our society. We are the best fans in the world and will always back our local & national 
teams or individuals to the hilt.  
 
However, if this enthusiasm went further, and translated to more sustainable participation in sport 
AND general physical activity, we could then truly call ourselves an active nation in line with some of 
our European neighbours. In turn, the people living in, working in & visiting Dublin City could say 
they belong to an 'active city'! 
 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership's flagship event will take place during the European Week 
of Sport (September 23rd – 30th). The festival will comprise of a week-long programme of innovative 
events & promotions across many of the sports clubs resident in the City in addition to Dublin City 
Council's facilities, parks and urban spaces. The focus will be on encouraging sustainable 
participation across all ages, backgrounds & abilities. The vast majority of events & activities will be 
free of charge! 
 
Our partners include Dublin City Council Sport & Recreation Services, Dublin Festival of History 
(Public Libraries), Cycling Ireland (Great Dublin Bike Ride), Parkrun, Junior Parkrun, Ireland Active, 
Sport Ireland, NEIC, Ballyfermot Youth Service and a large number of National & Regional Governing 
Bodies for various sports. This is in addition to a host of sports clubs from across the city. The list 
continues to grow all the time! 
 
In an age of individualism where time is at a premium and community spirit is on the wane, we are 
asking the people of Dublin to make some me time to get involved in Dublin Sportsfest. By doing so 
you will meet new people and improve your health, fitness & general wellbeing. 
 
Launch 
Dublin Sportsfest was officially launched on Tuesday, September 4th in Irishtown Stadium by the 
Lord Mayor, Nial Ring. The Ombudsman for Children, Dr. Niall Muldoon, was also in attendance. The 
venue was a hive of activity on the morning with children from local schools and some older adult 
groups invited along to participate in the numerous taster activities and provide a flavour of what 
Dublin Sportsfest is all about. 
 
We also had a number of Dublin-based national sporting personalities on hand to speak to the media 
and generate lots of excitement as part of their role as Dublin Sportsfest ambassadors. The launch 
was deemed to be a great success and let’s hope the week of Sportsfest itself follows suit.  

Page 51



 

 Website & Calendar of Events: 

DCSWP is currently working with Dublin City Council’s Web Unit to populate the site with 
information on the full programme of events across the week.  Although the programme of events 
will continue to evolve right up until Sportsfest week itself, the bulk of the information (all correct 
and double checked!) was up on the site in time for the launch on Sept. 4th 

 Pre-Existing Events: 

We are delighted to confirm that the Great Dublin Bike Ride, the Laser Run World Championships & 
Parkrun/Junior Parkrun have all formally agreed to allow us to market their events as part of Dublin 
Sportsfest.   We will look to ‘turn Parkrun blue’ on Wednesday 29th September by encouraging 
participants in Parkruns across the city to wear blue for Sportsfest.  

 DCC Facilities & NGB Participation: 

All DCC sport & recreation facilities have been informed that there is an expectation on them to 
participate in the week by delivering an innovative event, open day or special promotion. The week 
is an opportunity for them to showcase their facility & avail of the marketing and promotional push 
that Dublin Sportsfest will hopefully bring. The majority of centres have now put action plans in 
place.  

All National Governing Bodies for the various sports were contacted to see if they will get involved. 
The response to date has been positive with the FAI, Volleyball Ireland, Leinster Cricket, Tennis 
Ireland, Rowing Ireland, Leinster Rugby, Ladies Gaelic Football & Tug of War all due to take part in 
some form.  

 Response from Clubs to Date: 

We are delighted that the following clubs from across the city will be taking an active part in 
Sportsfest;  

 Templeogue Synge Street GAA Club, Dolphin Park Crumlin 
 Oblate Basketball Club, Inchicore 
 Fairplay Badminton Club, Glasnevin 
 Setanta Jugger Club, Fairview 
 Setanta GAA Club, Ballymun 
 Bushy Park Tennis & Padel Club, Terenure 
 Old Belvedere Rugby Club, Donnybrook 
 Templeogue Tennis Club, Templeogue 
 Stradford Lawn tennis Club, Rathmines 

 

We hope to add a few more between now and the commencement of Dublin Sportsfest.   
 
 
 
 

Page 52



HIGHLIGHT EVENTS  
 
Please see below a flavour of some of the bigger events planned: 
 

 Lord Mayor’s Liffey Bridge Paddle – In partnership with our friends in Ballyfermot Youth Service 
Adventure Centre, this event will consist of a 10k looped paddle starting and finishing in Poolbeg 
Yacht & Boat Club, Ringsend. The event will take place on Saturday 29th September (11am – 4pm). 
The route will take participants under many of Dublin’s iconic bridges with Grattan Bridge beside 
Civic Offices the designated turning point. It will be open to any craft that use a paddle such as 
kayaks – river and sea, canoes, sit-on-tops, stand –up paddle boards and rafts. This event is FREE and 
open to the general public - however all participants must pre-register via Clearbookings and satisfy 
the organisers they have the sufficient ability to participate (a Level 2 Kayak Cert will be the 
minimum requirement). Although they are not paddle craft, we will issue a special invite to a 
number of local rowing and dragonboat clubs to participate in order to add to the spectacle.BYS will 
also be responsible for promoting amongst other youth services & kayaking/rowing clubs citywide in 
an effort to recruit participants & additional craft. For any would-be participants who do not own or 
have access to a craft, we will enter an agreement with a kayak rental company to help provide a 
solution. 
 

 Dockland’s FITFEST @ Grand Canal Quay – Thursday 27th September (National Fitness Day).Run in 
partnership with Ireland Active, this will be a day of activities promoted by DCSWP as part of the 
overall Sportfest promotion and by Ireland Active as part of the  National Fitness day initiative.   
 

 Sports Stadium @ Dalymount Park – Monday 24th September. The main theme of this event is 
inclusion to coincide with Social Inclusion Week.  Events will be aimed at older adults, school 
children, migrant groups, people with mental health issues and those suffering with intellectual 
disabilities.  Partners for the event include the FAI, Bohemians FC – More than a Club Foundation 
and possibly D.I.T Grangegorman.  
 

 Glow Sports – Friday 28th September. DCSWP has purchased two glow packs to deliver a number of 
‘glow events’ during  the week of Sportsfest and beyond. A glow football event will be held on the 
evening of Friday 28th September, 
 

 Sports History  - Saturday 29th September. As part of the Festival of History a talk on the impact of 
World War 1 on Sport in Ireland will take place in Pearse St. Library. A Sports History Cycling Tour 
around some venues of interest in Dublin City will also take place on the evening of Monday, Sept 
24th. Details and logistics are currently being finalised. 
 

 City Hall Yoga – Monday 24th – Thursday 27th September. Six free classes will take place across 
Sportsfest week in the City Hall Rotunda. 
 

 Girls Fest 5’s – Friday 28th September. A 5-a-side tournament aimed at girls born in 2007/8/9 will be 
held in Irishtown in partnership with the FAI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



SPORT FOR YOUNG PEOPLE – SMALL GRANTS SCHEME 
 
Grants were advertised in mid-May via email to clubs and sports contacts, newspaper advertisement 
and via social media. Deadline for receipt of applications was Friday, June 29th 2018 at 4pm.   

 
Applications were open to Sports Clubs and Organisations within the Dublin City Area affiliated to a 
National Governing Body providing opportunities for young people aged 10 -21 yrs of age to 
participate in sport & physical activity. 

120 applications were received and 112 were approved for payment.  To date 80% of these 
payments were made in August with the remainder due to be paid in September.  

More information can be found at: 
 

www.dublincity.ie/smallgrantscheme2018 

 

BIKE FOR LIFE (CORE)            Under Active Adults    
 
This is a ‘sofa to saddle’ cycling programme that caters for all cyclists, from the person who has just 
rediscovered their bike, to the more accomplished rider who wants to take on greater challenges. 
The skills and knowledge gained in this programme will make the world of cycling more accessible to 
everyone, with the main focus being on learning skills, enjoying the bike and meeting new like-
minded people. 
 
The programme brings the cyclist on a journey of learning, where they are educated on the various 
skills, aspects and components of cycling in a safe, welcoming and social environment.  
 

 The Couch to 50K cycling programme has been ongoing in the North Central Area since 
August and the conclusion of the programme will lead into the Great Dublin Bike Ride on 
Sunday 23rd September.  The Dublin Bike Ride is a flagship event in Ireland for the European 
week of sport and will form part of Sportsfest week.  DCC provides free admission to the 
bike ride for 25 participants. Details of the Couch to 50k programmes are listed below.  

 

 Event: Couch to 50k  
Dates/Times:  Every Thursday & Sunday at 8am 
Location: Naomh Barrog GAA and coastal roads. 
Participants:  Mixed Adults 
Partners: Naomh Barrog Cycle Club 

 
 An 8 week programme for cycling novices in the lead up to the Great Dublin Bike Ride is 

ongoing with participants from Kilmore West Youth Project. Details are outlined below; 
 

 Programme: Bike For Life   
Dates/Times: Wednesdays 6-7pm 
Location: Kilmore West Recreation Centre 
Participants: Mixed 14-19 years.   
 
 
 

 

Page 54

http://www.dublincity.ie/smallgrantscheme2018


COUCH TO PARKRUN  (CORE)                                                               Underactive Adults   

Couch to Parkrun participants are encouraged to steadily improve their running ability over an 8 

week programme aiming to comfortably negotiate a 5k run at its conclusion.   

 A locally supervised couch to 5k programme will be run throughout September and October 

in the North Central area and will link in with Dublin Sportsfest from 24th – 30th September.  

Details of the programme are listed below; 

 Programme: Couch to 5k 
Dates/Times: Tuesdays at 7pm 
Location: Fr. Collins Park, Clongriffin 
Participants: Mixed Adults  
 
 

FIT 4 CLASS  (CORE)                                                                   Primary School Children   

In partnership with Athletics Ireland, DCSWP ensures each primary school receives a free multi-

sports kit and games book suitable for delivering a wide range of fun physical activity sessions and 

games.  

 Details of ongoing Fit 4 Life classes currently being run in North Central primary 

schools are outlined below; 

 Programme: Fit 4 Class 
Dates/Times: Ongoing Tuesdays 10am-12pm (Scoil Fhursa, Kilmore), Wednesdays 11am-
12pm (St. David’s NS, Artane). 
 

 

FOREVER FIT  (CORE)                                                                                  Older Adults   

The Forever Fit programme is aimed at older adults and focuses on activities to improve balance, co-

ordination and fall prevention. Activities include chair aerobics, tai chi, line dancing, yoga and 

mindfulness.  

 Details of Forever Fit programmes  running from September – December in the North 

Central area are outlined below.  

 Programme: Older Adults Exercise Class 
Dates/Times: Tuesdays 12pm (Kilbarrack Community & Parish Centre), Fridays 11am-12pm 
(Killester Parish Centre). 
Particpants: Older Adults 
 

 Programme: Yoga and mindfulness  
Dates/Times: Thursdays 10.30am-11.30am  
Location: Donneycarney Beaumont Local Care Centre 
Particpants: Female Older Adults 
 
 

Page 55



 Programme: Aqua Fit Senior Citizens  
Dates/Times: Thursdays 10.30am-11.30am  
Location: Donneycarney Beaumont Local Care Centre 
Particpants: Female Older Adults 
 

 

 

GREEN SCENE (CORE)                                                                                             Multiple Target Groups                                                      

Over the summer months Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership put together a schedule of 

activities to take place on Green Spaces around the City.  Activities comprised of multi-sport and 

physical activities that targeted various demographics within the community.    

 As part of the upcoming Sportsfest event  a  Green Scene sports day will be held in Clarehall 

in partnership with local community groups and resident associations.  Below are details of 

the event; 

 Event: Green Scene sports day 
Dates/Times: TBC 
Location: Clarehall community, Elm field area (TBC) 
Participants: Mixed Adults  
Partners: Naomh Barrog GAA Club 

 
 
 
 
THRIVE (CORE)                                                                                  Adults With Mental Health Difficulties                                                  

Thrive is a referral programme geared towards engaging people with mental health difficulties. This 

can range from people who suffer with anxiety or depression right through to people who may have 

suffered an acquired brain injury and need assistance in re-integrating into their communities from a 

personal independence, social & general wellbeing viewpoint.   

 Below are details of an ongoing Thrive programme in the North Central Area; 

 Programme: Indoor Football 

     Dates/Times: Ongoing  on Thursdays 3-4pm 

   Participants: Male Adults  
     Partners: HSE 

 

YOUTH FIT (CORE)                   Youth at Risk    (10-21 Years)                                                                                                                               

Youth Fit programmes are multi sport and fitness initiatives for young people in the area aged 10 
years and over.  
 

 In conjunction with S17 Kilbarrack Youth Project an ongoing health related fitness 
programme  is run in the North Central Area every Wednesday from 2-8pm (approx) 
throughout September.  Full details of the programme are outlined below; 

 

Page 56



 Programme: S17 Health Related Fitness 
Dates/Times: Wednesdays 2-8pm approximate 
Location: Kilbarrack 
Participants: Mixed Teens  
Partners: S17 Kilbarrack Youth Project 

 
 An  8 week intense Hell and Back Bootcamp programme is currently being delivered as a 

lead in programme for the family Hell & Back event on the 29th September.  Details are 
listed below; 

 

 Programme: Hell and Back Bootcamp 
Dates/Times: Wednesdays 6-7pm  
Location: Kilmore West Recreation Centre 
Participants: Mixed 14-19 years  
Partners: Kilmore West Youth Project 

 
 

GENERAL: 
 
Below are details of ongoing and upcoming activities, events and programmes running in the 
North Central Area in September and October. 
 

 Event: Sea swim & Pier jump 
Dates/Times: September TBC 
Location: Kilbarrack 
Participants: Mixed all ages 
Partners: Kilbarrack Coast Community Programme (KCCP), S17 Youth service & HSE Reach 
Out Programme 

 
 

 Programme: Raheny Way – Slí Na Sláinte. As part of Dublin Sportsfest this 
event/programme will seek to map and signpost new Slí routes in the Raheny & Costal areas 
in conjunction with the Irish Heart Foundation.  
Dates/Times: September 23rd – 30th . 
Location: Raheny 
Participants: Older Adults 
Partners: Irish Heart Foundation , Tidy Towns Raheny and Irish Sports Council.  

 
 

 Event: Lord Mayor’s Liffey Bride Paddle.  This is a highlight event for Sportfest week and 
multiple Youth Services from the North Central Area will partake in the event.   
Dates/Times: Saturday September 29th 
Location: See Sportsfest update for full details.  
Participants: Mixed all ages 
Partners: Kilbarrack Coast Community Programme, S17 Youth service & HSE Reach Out 
Programme 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 57



 Programme: Child Protection Training Level 1 for volunteers in sport. 
Dates/Times: September TBC  
Location: Clongriffin Community Centre 
Participants: Open to the general public 
.  

 
 

 Programme: Swimming Lessons  
Dates/Times: Ongoing. Thursdays 12pm-2pm (St. David’s Artane), Fridays 11am-1pm (St. 
John of God’s Kilmore)  
Location: Northside Pool  
Participants: Primary school Males (Artane), Females (Kilmore) 
Partners: Swim Ireland 

 
 
 

Boxing Development Officer Update 

Details of upcoming Boxing programmes and initiatives in the North Central Area are 
detailed below;  
 

 6th class students (mixed) from Our lady Immaculate,  Darndale, will be taking part in the 
Startbox Bronze programme each Tuesday afternoon during September.   
 

 Transition year students of Gaelscoil Rachrainn are involved in the boxing programme taking 
place at the Trinity Sports Complex on Monday, Thursday and Friday mornings for 
September.  

 

 On Tuesday mornings in September 4th, 5th and 6th class pupils of St.Benedicts St.Mary's 
are in the Bronze phase of the School Startbox programme on site in school Hall . 

 
 

 
 
Cricket Development Officer Update 
 
The Cricket Development Officer is currently liaising with Sports Development Officers in the area to 
organise the running of cricket programs for the coming months.  
 

 School coaching visits will commence  in the area in the following schools in late September: 
(Times TBC) 

 Northbay Educate Together, Kilbarrack 
 St David’s CBS, Artane 

 

Provincial cricket sessions start back in October on Friday nights from 5.00pm-9.30pm in North 
County Cricket Club where we have a number of players from the North Central area involved in 
these sessions and in particular players from the Clontarf/Raheny area. Players are between 10-18 
years of age. 
 
 

Page 58



Football Development Officer Update 
 
For details on Football programmes/initiatives in the North Central Area please contact Jimmy 
Mowlds, Football Development Officer at jimmy.mowlds@fai.ie 
 
 
Rugby Development Officer Update 

 
For details on Rugby programmes/initiatives in the North Central Area please contact Ray McCabe, 
Rugby Development Officer at ray.mccabe@leinsterrugby.ie 
 
 
 
Contact details  
 
Antonia Martin, DCSWP Programmes & Services Development Manager: 
antonia.martin@dublincity.ie  
Alan Morrin, Acting Senior Staff Officer DCSWP: alan.morrin@dublincity.ie   

Daniel Russell, Sports Officer: daniel.russell@dublincity.ie  

Derek Ahern, Sports Officer: derek.ahern@dublincity.ie  

Jimmy Mowlds, FAI Soccer: jimmy.mowlds@fai.ie  

Ray McCabe, Rugby: ray.mccabe@leinsterrugby.ie  

Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  

Noel Burke, Boxing: noelkarenburke@gmail.com  

 

Report by 

Dee O’Boyle  

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership: deirdre.oboyle@dublincity.ie 

 

  

Page 59

mailto:jimmy.mowlds@fai.ie
mailto:ray.mccabe@leinsterrugby.ie
mailto:antonia.martin@dublincity.ie
mailto:alan.morrin@dublincity.ie
mailto:daniel.russell@dublincity.ie
mailto:derek.ahern@dublincity.ie
mailto:jimmy.mowlds@fai.ie
mailto:ray.mccabe@leinsterrugby.ie
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:noelkarenburke@gmail.com
mailto:deirdre.oboyle@dublincity.ie




 

North Central Area Office, 
Northside Civic Centre, Bunratty Road, Coolock, Dublin 17.  

 
Oifig Ceantar an Lárthuaiscirt, 

Ionad Cathartha an Taoibh Thuaidh, Bóthar Bun Raite, 
An Chúlóg, Baile Atha Cliath 17. 

T. 01 222 8541  F. 01 877 5851 E. joanne.osullivan@dublincity.ie 
   

 

4th September 2018                      Ref: JOS/2373834/2018 

      

The Chairman and Members of  

North Central Area Committee. 

 

 

Naming & Numbering Proposal  

1-3 Castle Mews, Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3  

A new residential housing development on a site at the rear of  

134-136 Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 
  

 1-3 Castle Mews, Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3 /  
1-3 Eachlann an Chaisleáin, Ascaill an Chaisleáin, Cluain Tarbh, 

Baile Átha Cliath 3. 
 

         
This is a new residential development on a site at the rear of 134-136 Castle Avenue, 
Clontarf, Dublin 3. The development will consist of three two storey 3 bedroom 
houses. There is scope for a further 5 houses to be built in the rear gardens of the 
adjacent houses on Castle Avenue in the future. The development is indicated on the 
attached drawing RM37037.  
 
The developer has requested the name and numbers 1-3 Castle Mews, Castle 
Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3 / 1-3 Eachlann an Chaisleáin, Ascaill an Chaisleáin, 

Cluain Tarbh, Baile Átha Cliath 3. 

 
The heritage officer considers the proposed name to be suitable.  

1-3 Castle Mews, Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3 / 1-3 Eachlann an Chaisleáin, 

Ascaill an Chaisleáin, Cluain Tarbh, Baile Átha Cliath 3 is recommended for adoption.  

Dave Dinnigan 

___________________ 

Executive Manager. 

Page 61





Page 63





Traffic Service Requests: Status Report at 15/08/2018 

North Central Area Committee Meeting 17/09/2018 

 
Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request Statistics 

 

 

 

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Confirm: 

Stage 1 6 
Stage 2 123 
Stage 3 3 
Stage 4 38 
Stage 5 18 
 

General traffic service requests not requiring Statutory Orders: 
Total Non Tag requests received since previous 
report 

26 

Total Non Tag requests currently open on 
Confirm. 

228 

 

Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 

Explanation of Stages: 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, etc 

No. TAG Requests received since previous report       50 

Total TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 188 

Page 65



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

1 7002330 JAMES LARKIN ROAD (NC) Right Turn Filter Light at junction of Mt Prospect Ave. 06/04/2018 12:08:551

2 7002360 EDENMORE CRESCENT (NC) Double Yellow Lines on corners facing church 10/04/2018 10:37:201

3 7002606 GRANGE ROAD (NC) Traffic Lights (new) at Roundabout 30/04/2018 16:00:041

4 7003260 MILLWOOD VILLAS (NC) TAG General Engineer Query At junction Woodbine Road - Ramps or
buildout or other measures.

08/06/2018 09:49:571

5 7003453 CROYDON PARK AVENUE
(NC)

Disab Park Bay Residential 20/06/2018 09:04:571

6 7004193 TONLEGEE ROAD (NC) Continuous White Line Query relating to continuous white line
recently installed on Tonlegee Rd between
Ayrfield Drive and Limewood Estate.

08/08/2018 14:36:581

7 90044609 SP_7386 FOX'S LANE (NC) Cycle Track due to pedestrian accident beside Cycle
Lane

24/05/2013 10:28:382

8 90044627 SP_8117 HOWTH ROAD (NC) Cycle Track Speed restriction for cycle track, between
Kilbarrack Rd jct & Foxes Lane jct with
Howth Road
(see SR 8114 for repainting request).

24/07/2013 16:23:182

9 90044667 SP_9621 COLLINSWOOD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Collinswood and Collins
Avenue

25/11/2013 10:31:092

10 90044713 SP_11347 DUBLIN CITY Cycle Track requesting details of road cycle lane in the
North Central area

26/03/2014 13:11:002

11 90044720 SP_11661 FAIRVIEW STRAND (NC) Cycle Track no room for cyclists due to new 2 lane road 09/04/2014 13:12:232

12 90044721 SP_11721 RAHENY ROAD (NC) Cycle Track on Raheny Road. 11/04/2014 13:24:122

13 90044723 SP_11807 BROOKWOOD AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Gracefield Road. 16/04/2014 12:19:092

14 90044730 SP_11937 PHILIPSBURGH AVENUE (NC) Cycle Track on Philipsburgh Avenue 25/04/2014 17:02:122

15 90044734 SP_12042 MCAULEY ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing on the road. 30/04/2014 15:23:402

16 90044745 SP_12240 COLLINS AVENUE (NW/NC) Pedestrian Crossing outside Whitehall Colmcille GAA Club. 09/05/2014 17:18:282

17 90044800 SP_13522 CASTLE AVENUE (NC) Cycle Track to update Dublin City Cycling website with a
map of all cycle lanes.   

06/08/2014 10:21:132

18 90044805 SP_13689 GRIFFITH AVENUE (NW/NC) Cycle Track ST VINCENT DE PAUL GNS - GRIFFITH
AVENUE Modify cycle lane set-up.

21/08/2014 12:32:042

19 90044825 SP_14187 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Cycle Track Complaint of cyclists cycling through stop
waiting area; request realign cycle lane.

22/09/2014 11:14:362

20 90044827 SP_14256 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Cycle Track Clearer delineation for  cycleway &
pedestrian pathway o/s Pumping Station on
Clontarf Rd.

25/09/2014 12:15:392

21 90044853 SP_14720 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Cycle Track Request for barriers on cycle lane at
entrance to night time Bus Park.

20/10/2014 14:55:502

22 90044858 SP_14813 HOWTH ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the Topaz Garage
 

23/10/2014 10:10:482

23 90044865 SP_14882 SION HILL ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing On Sion Hill Road at the Goose Tavern. 29/10/2014 15:12:192

Page 1 of 9

Page 66



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

24 90045097 SP_17694 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing from the pedestrian passageway to the
shops at the Northern Cross Development.

20/04/2015 12:45:532

25 90045098 SP_17695 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Traffic Lights (new) and Pedestrian Crossing at the exit from the
Northern Cross Development.

20/04/2015 12:52:552

26 90045136 SP_18028 JAMES LARKIN ROAD (NC) Cycle Track Query re cycle track along Clontarf, 08/05/2015 13:05:302

27 90045166 SP_18322 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Cycle Track Speed signs to be erected along cycle path
from Clontarf Rd to Dublin Rd.

22/05/2015 13:44:022

28 90045179 SP_18451 COPELAND AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Howth Road. 03/06/2015 09:40:202

29 90045247 SP_19064 COPELAND AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Copeland Ave & Howth Rd. 08/07/2015 14:45:452

30 90045259 SP_19154 GREENDALE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Thornville Drive or at entrance to Shopping
centre -near Centra entrance.

15/07/2015 13:01:382

31 90045313 SP_19592 VENETIAN HALL (NC) Traffic Lights (new) at Venetian Hall. 11/08/2015 14:54:452

32 90045364 SP_19987 GRANGE ROAD (NC) Bus Lane from Baldoyle railway bridge to the
Roundabout at Donaghmede.

04/09/2015 16:08:102

33 90045456 SP_20517 ARDLEA ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing near 152 Ardlea Road 01/10/2015 15:24:352

34 90045512 SP_20958 CASTLE AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the roundabout outside Clontarf Castle. 21/10/2015 15:43:352

35 90045554 SP_21164 SLADEMORE AVENUE (NC) School Warden Additional school warden for Slademore
Ave.

02/11/2015 10:33:482

36 90045598 SP_27781 GRACE PARK ROAD (NW/NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the top of Grace Park Road at the junction
with Collins Avenue.

12/11/2015 16:04:372

37 90045613 SP_27895 GREENDALE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing crossing from Colaiste Dulaigh to Briarfield
Villas.

18/11/2015 13:25:002

38 90045676 SP_28290 ARDLEA ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing between Church on Ardlea Road and the
Artane roundabout. 

04/12/2015 12:33:072

39 90045929 SP_30068 CHANEL AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Across Ardlea Road at junction with Chanel
Avenue,
 

03/03/2016 13:29:212

40 90045947 SP_30154 WOODLAWN AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing from Woodlawn Estate area to Santry 08/03/2016 16:18:522

41 90045949 SP_30167 PRIORSWOOD ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Moatview Avenue/Garden to Ferrycarrig
Green.

09/03/2016 09:36:092

42 90046202 SP_31756 WATERMILL ROAD (NC) Disab Park Bay Gen (Rescind) Move space 03/06/2016 12:36:142

43 90046205 SP_31796 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing near junction with Collins Avenue / Collins
Ave East

07/06/2016 11:27:452

44 90046206 SP_31797 KILLESTER AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing near junction with Malahide Road 07/06/2016 11:30:472

45 90046408 SP_33443 GRANGE PARK CRESCENT
(NC)

Double Yellow Lines at the footpath dishing at the DART /
flyover.

29/08/2016 17:09:532

46 90046427 SP_33621 RICHMOND ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) from No. 251, Chains Limited to the
boundary of No. 249.

06/09/2016 16:17:242

47 90046455 SP_33758 COOLOCK VILLAGE CLOSE
(NC)

Cycle Track around Coolock and Coolock Village. 13/09/2016 16:37:562

Page 2 of 9

Page 67



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

48 90046476 SP_33871 ANNADALE CRESCENT (NC) Double Yellow Lines at the junction of Annadale Drive. 19/09/2016 11:08:382

49 90046642 SP_34797 SLADEMORE AVENUE (NC) Roundabout (Rescind) Change location of new roundabout on
Slademore Ave.

03/11/2016 16:00:262

50 90046710 SP_35225 CLONSHAUGH ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing another pedestrian crossing in the middle of
the two between the Clayton and Hilton
hotels

23/11/2016 14:48:382

51 90046800 SP_35617 SAINT LAWRENCE ROAD (NC)Pedestrian Crossing On St. Lawrence Road at the junction with
Howth Road

19/12/2016 15:55:012

52 90047685 SP_36541 CARNDONAGH LAWN (NC) Double Yellow Lines or single yellow time-plated 6am to 7pm
outside No.41.

15/02/2017 15:00:372

53 90047919 SP_36777 SAINT BRIGID'S ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at St Brigids Rd / Gracefield Rd interface 02/03/2017 12:18:332

54 90047992 SP_36850 HOWTH ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing near entrance to Foxfield Road. 07/03/2017 14:34:462

55 90048168 SP_37028 NEWBROOK ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian or Zebra Crossing from
Donaghmede Credit Union to the shops,
east of the Topaz Garage. 

15/03/2017 12:52:312

56 90048222 SP_37083 STATION ROAD (NC) Bus Stop Marking request bus cage marking be moved or
reduced in size

16/03/2017 13:47:592

57 90048479 SP_37342 ANNADALE DRIVE (NC) Disab Park Bay Residential Outside No. 41.  To determine if Annadale
Drive is high/low demand for parking.

04/04/2017 16:46:492

58 90048756 SP_37624 ANNADALE DRIVE (NC) Double Yellow Lines on the corners and at the entrance to the
cul-de-sac to Nos. 49-87.

24/04/2017 12:21:222

59 90049195 SP_38068 GRIFFITH AVENUE (NW/NC) Cycle Track along all of Griffith Avenue 17/05/2017 10:30:382

60 90049525 SP_38401 CLONSHAUGH AVENUE (NC) Traffic Lights (new) at the junction of Glin Road. 30/05/2017 15:13:472

61 90050445 SP_39342 TULIP COURT (NC) Yellow Box (Extend) o/s Our Lady Immaculate Senior National
School.
 

24/07/2017 13:35:312

62 90050700 SP_39598 MAIN STREET (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Coolock Village, outside Cock and Bull pub 09/08/2017 12:53:482

63 90050720 SP_39618 ARDLEA ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at Ardlea Road /Kilmore Road 09/08/2017 20:06:342

64 90050790 SP_39688 CASTLE AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at junction of Castle Ave and Victoria Rd. 14/08/2017 13:14:142

65 90050804 SP_39702 SAINT GABRIEL'S ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing between church and shops 15/08/2017 11:53:502

66 90050913 SP_39813 COOLOCK DRIVE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing across from the Aldi Store. 22/08/2017 13:11:362

67 90050952 SP_39853 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at junction with Oulton Road. 23/08/2017 12:06:112

68 90050996 SP_39897 WINDSOR AVENUE (NC) Disab Park Bay Residential outside no 41. 25/08/2017 09:48:352

69 90051090 SP_39991 GREENCASTLE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at Greencastle Parade. 30/08/2017 16:08:412

70 90051162 SP_40063 VERNON PARK (NC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) At No.8 (appealing SR39932 decision not to
extend DYL's)
 
 

04/09/2017 17:01:522

71 90051241 SP_40143 MERVILLE AVENUE (NC) Loading Bay outside Little Sport Bike Shop 07/09/2017 14:46:582

Page 3 of 9

Page 68



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

72 90051538 SP_40447 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing on Malahide Rd at the walkway between
Malahide road and Belmayne.
See SR17694

25/09/2017 00:00:002

73 90051694 SP_40607 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at the Astro Pitches. 04/10/2017 00:00:002

74 90051762 SP_40676 KILBARRACK ROAD (NC) Yellow Box at entrance to Kilbarrack Parade (Industrial
Estate).

06/10/2017 00:00:002

75 7000048 WATERMILL DRIVE (NC) Double Yellow Lines at Bus Stop Nos. 655 and 4386 on Watermill
Dr.

25/10/2017 16:42:302

76 7000543 CLANREE ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming Traffic Calming or Signage 23/11/2017 12:43:212

77 7000972 WATERMILL ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing close to the junction of All Saint's Road. 19/12/2017 13:30:172

78 7001299 TURLOGH PARADE (NC) Cycle Track on the road. 19/01/2018 10:02:532

79 7001574 SAINT DONAGH'S ROAD (NC) TAG General Engineer Query Short section of DYL between DPB and
entrance to Dart Station needs to follow
curve of path.

06/02/2018 10:29:192

80 7001602 ALL SAINTS ROAD (NC) Bus Stop Marking Bus Stop Markings for: All Saints Road,
Watermill Drive, Watermilll Road.

07/02/2018 13:34:592

81 7001641 NEWBROOK ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines Extend DYL's further up Newbrook Ave at
the junction with Newbrook Rd.

09/02/2018 12:48:072

82 7001670 BARRYSCOURT ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing with lights to allow safe
access to Northside Shopping Centre.

13/02/2018 10:27:412

83 7001681 BELMAYNE AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing on Parkside Boulevard near the two schools 13/02/2018 12:13:322

84 7001771 KILMORE DRIVE (NC) Traffic Calming some form of traffic calming for the road. 21/02/2018 13:31:182

85 7001834 EDENMORE PARK (NC) School Warden Crossing Box at the School Warden Duty Point at St.
Malachy's National School.

26/02/2018 14:26:332

86 7001858 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian/cyclist crossing for seaward side. 27/02/2018 15:51:072

87 7002058 GREENCASTLE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Greencastle Rd at the eastern entrance to
the Stardust Memorial Park

16/03/2018 16:43:222

88 7002062 HAZEL ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming HAZEL RD & HOLLY RD 16/03/2018 16:57:222

89 7002063 MOUNT PROSPECT AVENUE
(NC)

Pedestrian Crossing at a suitable point along the avenue. 16/03/2018 17:00:202

90 7002287 NEWBROOK ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines in mini cul-de-sac 05/04/2018 11:41:312

91 7002467 CLONTARF PARK (NC) Speed Ramps Provision of previously recommended ramp. 18/04/2018 12:57:392

92 7002517 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) TAG General Engineer Query Safety conflict Cycle Lane between Bus Stop
1752 (inbound east of Wooden Bridge) and
the kerb.

23/04/2018 10:32:452

93 7002740 GOOSE GREEN COURT (NC) Yellow Box At entrance to estate 03/05/2018 15:30:182

94 7002898 CARA PARK (NC) Traffic Lights (new) Junction with R139 (N32) to facilitate turning
onto N32

17/05/2018 09:13:142

95 7003059 STRANDVILLE AVENUE EAST
(NC)

Double Yellow Lines (Extend) along the kerbline south of the entrance to
Stranville Avenue Apartments.

25/05/2018 11:59:262

Page 4 of 9

Page 69



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

96 7003179 NORTHERN CLOSE (NC) Traffic Lights (new) at junction with R139 (N32) 01/06/2018 14:48:312

97 7003181 HOWTH ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures sought. Also
SLOW signage on ground.

01/06/2018 17:33:562

98 7003197 KINCORA ROAD (NC) School Warden Crossing Box School Warden approved for this location
(700840) but School Keep Clear Markings
and Yellow Box also required.

05/06/2018 14:03:202

99 7003331 CALDERWOOD ROAD (NC) Speed Ramps along the road 13/06/2018 12:32:472

100 7003347 NEWBROOK ROAD (NC) School Warden Crossing Box Request Yellow Box at Holy Trinity National
School. Footpath will need to be dished also.
Also request SKC markings and signage at
this location.

13/06/2018 16:01:142

101 7003411 CLONTARF ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian facilities at area around Clontarf
Baths

18/06/2018 13:21:542

102 7003445 GRANGE ABBEY GROVE (NC) Continuous White Line White line markings exiting Grange Abbey
Grove See Pic

19/06/2018 12:32:292

103 7003450 MOUNT PROSPECT AVENUE
(NC)

Parking Restrictions from Baymount Prk to Park Lawn 19/06/2018 14:19:382

104 7003582 ADARE GREEN (NC) Single Yellow Line on the far side of the road in Adare Green 29/06/2018 11:49:342

105 7003603 SAINT DONAGH'S ROAD (NC) Roundabout install a roundabout at the beginning of Saint
Donagh’s Road.

02/07/2018 14:40:482

106 7003611 WOODBINE PARK (NC) Double Yellow Lines DYLs for left side when entering from
Raheny Rd.

03/07/2018 12:57:002

107 7003641 VERNON AVENUE (NC) One-Way System regarding the suitability of the road for a
one-way option.

04/07/2018 13:00:192

108 7003684 MILLBROOK AVENUE (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Safety measures to enable children to cross
rd

06/07/2018 15:59:002

109 7003722 ALL SAINTS ROAD (NC) Traffic Lights (new) requesting if Dublin City Council have
assessed the junction of All Saint’s Road
and Howth Road for traffic lights

10/07/2018 12:18:342

110 7003725 GREENCASTLE ROAD (NC) Speed Ramps Looking for an additional ramp on the road. 10/07/2018 14:47:512

111 7003754 NEWTOWN COURT (NC) Double Yellow Lines Newtown court off Belcamp Lane 11/07/2018 14:34:042

112 7003774 COPELAND AVENUE (NC) Right Turn Filter Light From Copeland onto Malahide Rd 13/07/2018 09:51:222

113 7003777 OULTON ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing at or near junction Oulton Road/Clontarf
Road

13/07/2018 12:38:152

114 7003950 BRIARFIELD ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines at the junction of Briarfield Villas and
Briarfield Road.

25/07/2018 12:58:472

115 7003951 SAINT BRENDAN'S DRIVE
(NC)

Traffic Calming Confusion from drivers coming off the
malahide road in relation to who has the
right of way.

25/07/2018 13:04:022

116 7003958 MIDDLE THIRD (NC) Double Yellow Lines DYLs to prevent dangerous parking in
proximity to Killester DART Station.

25/07/2018 17:01:122

117 7003988 CROMCASTLE GREEN (NC) Double Yellow Lines Outside 2A Cromcastle Green 26/07/2018 15:31:312

Page 5 of 9

Page 70



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

118 7004012 CARNDONAGH PARK (NC) Speed Ramps There are 30+ children playing within 100
meters on the street each day so any traffic
calming measures (traffic signs, speed
bumps) would be greatly appreciated

30/07/2018 11:44:532

119 7004013 CARNDONAGH PARK (NC) Children Crossing Sign ‘Children At Play’ road safety signs to be
erected on a residential street in Dublin 13

30/07/2018 11:45:542

120 7004037 GREENCASTLE ROAD (NC) Traffic Lights (new) Requested for traffic lights to be put at the
junction of Coolock Drive and Greencastle
Road in light of development plans for the
Chivers site

31/07/2018 09:07:392

121 7004117 MARYFIELD DRIVE (NC) Double Yellow Lines DYLs or solid white line requested. 02/08/2018 16:41:292

122 7004118 MARINO CRESCENT (NC) Bus Lane Extend lane to allow buses to pass more
quickly through crossroad at Marino
Crescent & Fairview Park.

02/08/2018 17:05:342

123 7004119 GRANGE ABBEY GROVE (NC) Continuous White Line (Extend) Extend white line turning right when entering
estate.

02/08/2018 17:34:302

124 7004120 THE HOLE IN THE WALL
ROAD (NC)

Roundabout (Rescind) Remove roundabout and have junction
controlled by traffic lights only.

02/08/2018 17:49:422

125 7004164 GRANGE ABBEY ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming 07/08/2018 12:21:172

126 7004216 VERNON GARDENS (NC) One-Way System requesting one-way street or other traffic
calming measures to reduce use of road as
a rat-run.

09/08/2018 16:53:312

127 7004217 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) TAG General Engineer Query To review the Artane roundabout roundabout
including Extend yellow boxes and provide
additional lane signage.

09/08/2018 17:28:462

128 7004268 SLADEMORE AVENUE (NC) Speed Ramps Speed ramps for this location. 13/08/2018 18:19:342

129 7004293 CALDERWOOD ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming Along the road 15/08/2018 09:02:462

130 90046742 SP_35380 HOLLYBROOK ROAD (NC) P&D/Permit Park (Extend Area) from Nos. 13 to 38 on the west side and
from Nos. 39 to 66 on the east side.

07/12/2016 17:13:343

131 7000623 CHARLEMONT ROAD (NC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a scheme on the road. 27/11/2017 14:31:283

132 7000889 SAINT JOSEPH'S TERRACE
(NC)

P&D/Permit Parking .Introduction of a Scheme on the road. 14/12/2017 10:35:383

133 90044623 SP_7946 SWAN'S NEST AVENUE (NC) Speed Ramps Request for ramps on Swan's Nest Avenue. 12/07/2013 15:01:164

134 90044683 SP_10207 DROMNANANE ROAD (NC) Buildout at the junction of Dromnanane Road and
Coolatree Road.

14/01/2014 13:31:484

135 90044693 SP_10628 GRANGE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing on Grange Road at Grange Abbey Grove. 11/02/2014 13:12:354

136 90044751 SP_12323 MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming on the Malahide Road slip road, between
Marino Crescent and Clontarf Road.

14/05/2014 15:08:474

137 90044784 SP_12935 HADDON ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Build-Out at the junction of Clontarf Road. 25/06/2014 15:48:454

138 90045286 SP_19282 HAZELWOOD PARK (NC) Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures. 21/07/2015 15:43:034

139 90045360 SP_19961 ADARE PARK (NC) Speed Ramps on the road 03/09/2015 17:15:104

140 90045427 SP_20334 SION HILL ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming Request additional ramp in vicinity of No. 43 22/09/2015 15:38:494

Page 6 of 9

Page 71



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

141 90045522 SP_21001 ANNADALE DRIVE (NC) Traffic Calming on the road. 22/10/2015 16:16:354

142 90045616 SP_27903 SAINT GABRIEL'S ROAD (NC) Zebra Crossing at Mace shop 18/11/2015 16:12:264

143 90045633 SP_27974 EDENMORE GREEN (NC) Traffic Calming Appeal in relation to traffic claming
measures for the road.
Appealing SR 18383.

20/11/2015 16:48:134

144 90045643 SP_28076 KINCORA ROAD (NC) Speed Ramps on the road. 24/11/2015 16:39:344

145 90045839 SP_29373 KINCORA GROVE (NC) Traffic Calming Kincora Grove 05/02/2016 18:18:254

146 90046074 SP_30910 THORNVILLE AVENUE (NC) Speed Ramps on the road 20/04/2016 15:35:474

147 90046551 SP_34250 GRACE PARK HEIGHTS (NC) Speed Ramps additional ramp on the road 11/10/2016 16:46:464

148 90046754 SP_35417 BEAUMONT WOODS (NC) Left Turn Filter Light From Beaumont Woods onto Beaumont
Road.

09/12/2016 14:50:564

149 90046895 SP_35745 SEAFIELD ROAD EAST (NC) Traffic Calming near 1 Seacourt. 05/01/2017 16:12:304

150 90047117 SP_35968 FOXFIELD ROAD (NC) Speed Ramps on the road. 17/01/2017 15:01:434

151 90047622 SP_36476 MIDDLE THIRD (NC) Traffic Calming That a detailed report be given on the
hazardous traffic situation that pertains on
parts of Middle Third and the dangers posed
for pedestrians and motorists alike to include
possible safety measures that can be put in
place.
 

09/02/2017 17:03:514

152 90047636 SP_36491 CASTLE AVENUE (NC) Traffic Calming in relation to Belgrove JBS and JGS on
Castle Avenue

10/02/2017 16:28:224

153 90048340 SP_37203 GREENCASTLE ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming on the top half of the road between
Barryscourt Road and Riverside junction.

27/03/2017 14:58:334

154 90048484 SP_37347 MILLBROOK DRIVE (NC) Speed Ramps at the junction of Millbrook Drive and
Tonlegee Road.

05/04/2017 09:37:284

155 90048678 SP_37544 OLD MALAHIDE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing Enlarge entrance to Malahide Rd Industrial
Pk at Newtown House/Power Bookmakers to
facilitate traffic from Old Malahide Rd, and
cut back the north-east corner of the exit
onto Malahide Rd to ease access for larger
vehicles. 

12/04/2017 16:50:284

156 90048697 SP_37563 GREENCASTLE ROAD (NC) Pedestrian Crossing towards the Stardust Memorial Park /
Barryscourt Road.

18/04/2017 12:22:094

157 90049053 SP_37924 FERRYCARRIG ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming at the junction of Ferrycarrig Road and
Ferrycarrig Drive.

08/05/2017 20:39:344

158 90051129 SP_40030 SPRINGDALE ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming for additional traffic calming measures.
 

01/09/2017 09:32:184

159 90051883 SP_40797 CILL EANNA (NC) Speed Ramps along the road. 12/10/2017 00:00:004

160 90051919 SP_40833 DANIELI ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) at the end of Danieli Road, junction with
St.Brigid's Road.

17/10/2017 00:00:004

161 7000077 EDENMORE AVENUE (NC) Traffic Calming on the road. 26/10/2017 11:49:044

162 7000269 CHANEL AVENUE (NC) Speed Ramps Speed ramps On the road 08/11/2017 14:54:594

Page 7 of 9

Page 72



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

163 7000758 KILBARRON ROAD (NC) Stop Line issue with sensor approaching Kilbarron Rd
from Beaumont

05/12/2017 12:35:324

164 7001282 MOUNT PROSPECT DRIVE
(NC)

Disab Park Bay Residential Outside No. 14, 18/01/2018 12:03:224

165 7002061 BELTON PARK ROAD (NC) Children Crossing Sign from Collins Ave. 16/03/2018 16:54:144

166 7002231 BEAUVALE PARK (NC) Double Yellow Lines To prevent parking on bend. 28/03/2018 17:59:124

167 7002574 CLONSHAUGH RISE (NC) Double Yellow Lines DYLS at this location 26/04/2018 15:12:274

168 7002733 THE CLOSE (NC) Double Yellow Lines at corner of The Close and Ivy Court. 03/05/2018 12:38:514

169 7003053 DUNLUCE ROAD (NC) Traffic Calming along the road 24/05/2018 15:33:244

170 7003184 BEECHLAWN DRIVE (NC) Yellow Box Near Jennings Funeral Home, Aldi etc. 05/06/2018 12:12:184

171 90044749 SP_12285 MCAULEY AVENUE (NC) Stop Sign Traffic measures at bend at junction of
McAuley Avenue & Léin Park, and at bend at
junction with Léin Road.

13/05/2014 12:40:545

172 90045778 SP_28967 RAHENY PARK (NC) Yield Sign outside No. 83. 19/01/2016 15:22:465

173 90045865 SP_29562 BELMONT PARK (NC) Stop Sign at the beginning of the estate for cars exiting
onto Raheny Road.

11/02/2016 10:50:115

174 90046620 SP_34649 MERVILLE AVENUE (NC) P&D/Permit Park (Change
Hours)

for extension of operational hours.  BALLOT 25/10/2016 13:29:055

175 90046661 SP_34896 KINCORA GROVE (NC) Children Crossing Sign on Kincora Grove. 08/11/2016 16:31:095

176 90048692 SP_37558 CLONSHAUGH DRIVE (NC) School Ahead Sign for St. Francis Senior National School. 18/04/2017 12:12:225

177 90051265 SP_40167 VERNON AVENUE (NC) Disab Park Bay Residential Outside No. 27. 08/09/2017 12:30:365

178 90051624 SP_40534 THORNVILLE ROAD (NC) 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 02/10/2017 00:00:005

179 7000840 KINCORA ROAD (NC) School Warden at junction of Oulton Rd and Kincora Rd. 11/12/2017 16:53:505

180 7001041 MASK AVENUE (NC) Yield Sign at the junction of Mask Avenue and Mask
Crescent.

03/01/2018 15:00:305

181 7002054 NEWBROOK ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) in Cul De Sac at above location 16/03/2018 13:08:415

182 7002056 LOMOND AVENUE (NC) Loading Bay outside Dublin Plumbing Services, No. 107B 16/03/2018 15:45:365

183 7002117 COLLINS PARK (NC) Stop Sign Yield or Stop Sign at junction 22/03/2018 10:46:155

184 7002124 WATERMILL DRIVE (NC) Stop Sign at junction Watermill Road 22/03/2018 13:31:595

185 7002233 THE BRAMBLINGS (NC) Single Yellow Line Time restriction needed for the single yellow
line timeplate.

29/03/2018 10:24:235

186 7002378 KILBARRON ROAD (NC) No Entry sign and roadmarkings on the first turn right
(on entering the cul-de-sac section of
Kilbarron Road).

10/04/2018 16:46:395

187 7002890 SAINT GABRIEL'S ROAD (NC) Double Yellow Lines Between the disabled bays across the
entrance

16/05/2018 14:41:135

Page 8 of 9

Page 73



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Thursday 16 August 2018
188 Items

Status

188 7003407 MARINO MART (NC) Cycle Track Review design of markings and signage for
non-mandatory cycle path.

18/06/2018 13:01:485

Page 9 of 9

Page 74



Page 1 of 5

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

06/09/2018
North Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 17/09/2018)
32 Items

1 7000543 CLANREE ROAD (NC) Dublin 5Traffic Calming Traffic Calming or Signage 0MinisterNot
Recommended

Following speed checks undertaken on 22nd & 23rd August 2018
on Clanmaurice and Clanree Roads. The 85th percentile speed
recorded was 31k/hr & 35k/hr. This data indicates that the warrant
for traffic calming has not been met. Therefore traffic calming is
not recommended.

23/11/2017

2 7000732 BROOKVILLE PARK
(NC)

Dublin 5Left Turn Only
Lane

Looking for additonal signage
indicating left turn only.

1Member of
the Public

Recommended An Rus 006 "Left turn only" sign is in situ at this junction onto the
Malahide Road which is clearly visible on the left side of the
junction.However it is recommended that an RRM 005 left turn
road marking be provided for additional clarity.

04/12/2017

3 7001363 CROYDON PARK
AVENUE (NC)

Dublin 3Double Yellow
Lines

Review of an unsafe crossing for
school children, at the black
bollards beside a house with a
bush and two half green areas on
either side.

0Member of
the Public

Recommended Following investigation it is recommended that double yellow lines
be provided on Groydon Pk. Ave.at the desire line for school
children at the junction of Casino Road . Running northwards from
Lamp Standard no 5 for 17m.

23/01/2018

4 7001574 SAINT DONAGH'S
ROAD (NC)

Dublin 13TAG General
Engineer Query

Short section of DYL between
DPB and entrance to Dart
Station needs to follow curve of
path.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Double yellow lines have been provided across the outside of the
existing indented parking bay to prevent double parking on this
section of road adjacent to the Dart Station. No additional
measures recommended.

06/02/2018

5 7001834 EDENMORE PARK
(NC)

Dublin 5School Warden
Crossing Box

at the School Warden Duty Point
at St. Malachy's National
School.

0InternalRecommended A School Warden Crossing Point (M121) is recommended  on the
western side of the existing ramp and Lamp Standard no 17.

26/02/2018

6 7002740 GOOSE GREEN
COURT (NC)

Dublin 9Yellow Box At entrance to estate 0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

A yellow box is not recommended as the criteria has not been
met, namely,Side road traffic flows should be significant and the
side road should serve a minimum of fifty houses or a major traffic
generating facility.

03/05/2018

7 7002898 CARA PARK (NC) Dublin 17Traffic Lights
(new)

Junction with R139 (N32) to
facilitate turning onto N32

0InternalNot
Recommended

The provision of signals at this location is not recommended as
the location does not meet the criteria for signals. However it is
recommended that a designated right turn filter lane be provided
for a distance of 25m to facillitate access to Cara Park.

17/05/2018

8 7003059 STRANDVILLE
AVENUE EAST (NC)

Dublin 3Double Yellow
Lines (Extend)

along the kerbline south of the
entrance to Stranville Avenue
Apartments.

0Member of
the Public

Recommended Following investigation. It is recommended that  double yellow
lines be provided on the eastern side of Strandville Ave. East,from
the existing double yellow lines south of the entrance to
Strandville Ave.Apartments running southwards to the entrance
gate of Simla Lodge. a distance of 10m.

25/05/2018

9 7003179 NORTHERN CLOSE
(NC)

Dublin 17Traffic Lights
(new)

at junction with R139 (N32) 0InternalNot
Recommended

The provision of signals at this location is not recommended as
the location does not meet the criteria for signals. A right turn filter
lane has been provided  to facillitate access to Northern Close.

01/06/2018

P
age 75



Page 2 of 5

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

06/09/2018
North Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 17/09/2018)
32 Items

10 7003181 HOWTH ROAD (NC) Dublin 3Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures sought.
Also SLOW signage on ground.

1CouncillorNot
Recommended

A junction table exists at the entrance to Maywood Crescent & St.
Assam's Road East.from Howth Road. A Pedestrian crossing
exists in close proximity to either of these junctions together with
a yellow box, bus cages and cycle lanes,where the onus is on
drivers to approach at an apropriate speed. As Howth Road is a
major link route to and from the city, traffic calming would not be
apropriate on this road and is therefore not recommended.

01/06/2018

11 7003197 KINCORA ROAD (NC) Dublin 3School Warden
Crossing Box

School Warden approved for this
location (700840) but School
Keep Clear Markings and Yellow
Box also required.

0InternalRecommended Following investigation an M121"School Warden Crossing"point
yellow box should be provided  across Kincora Road between the
junction of Oulton Road and no 38 Kincora Road. RRM 010
"school keep Clear" markings should also be provided across the
laneway between nos. 11/13a Kincora Road.

05/06/2018

12 7003331 CALDERWOOD
ROAD (NC)

Dublin 9Speed Ramps along the road 0TDNot
Recommended

Following speed checks undertaken on Calderwood Road on
09/10 /08/2018 between 07.00 hrs and 08.00hrs, The 85th
percentile speed was 32k/hr. This percentile speed together with
a  traffic volume not meeting the warrant,indicates that traffic
calming is not required and is therefore not recommended.

13/06/2018

13 7003347 NEWBROOK ROAD
(NC)

Dublin 13School Warden
Crossing Box

Request Yellow Box at Holy
Trinity National School. Footpath
will need to be dished also. Also
request SKC markings and
signage at this location.

0InternalRecommended Following examination, a School Warden Crossing Point
(M121)yellow box is recommended 5m north of Lamp Standard
no 8 on Newbrook Road.Dishing is required on either side of  the
carriageway.A new hard surface is required across the grass
margin on the eastern side of the carriageway.

13/06/2018

14 7003445 GRANGE ABBEY
GROVE (NC)

Dublin 13Continuous White
Line

White line markings exiting
Grange Abbey Grove See Pic

0TDNot
Recommended

The provision of a continuous white line is not recommended
within residential estates where it is inevitable for vehicles to
cross the centre of the road where on street parking is
available.The onus is on the motorist to drive with due care and at
a speed appropriate for the prevailing conditions. This Estate is in
a 30k Zone and signage has been provided to this effect.

19/06/2018

15 7003582 ADARE GREEN (NC) Dublin 17Single Yellow Line on the far side of the road in
Adare Green

0TDNot
Recommended

The carriageway at Adare Green is 7.5m wide, this can
accommodate parking without interfering with traffic flow.On
inspection there was no evidence to the contrary.Parking
restrictions would only shift parking to the western side
(residential) of the road impinging more on local
residents.Therefore single yellow lines are not recommended.

29/06/2018

16 7003611 WOODBINE PARK
(NC)

Dublin 5Double Yellow
Lines

DYLs for left side when entering
from Raheny Rd.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Previously recommendedby TAG on 25/1/2018:
'Following investigation it is recommended that double yellow
lines be provided for 15m on either side of the entrance to
Woodbine Park in order to improve visibility and maintain access
to the footpath dishing'.  No. Further action required.

03/07/2018

P
age 76



Page 3 of 5

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

06/09/2018
North Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 17/09/2018)
32 Items

17 7003641 VERNON AVENUE
(NC)

Dublin 3One-Way System regarding the suitability of the
road for a one-way option.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

A one way system is currently in situ on Clontarf Park,with no
entry from Vernon Ave. An additional  one way system on Vernon
Gardens would lead to increased traffic speed, volume  and
inconvenience to residents where traffic is diverted. Therefore a
one way system is not recommended.

04/07/2018

18 7003725 GREENCASTLE
ROAD (NC)

Dublin 17Speed Ramps Looking for an additional ramp
on the road.

1TDRecommended Traffic calming has been provided at appropriate locations on
Greencastle Road including ramps ,mini roundabouts and ghost
hatching at the junction of Barryscourt Road. However due to the
distance between the bend and existing ramp to the north an
additional 4.5m ramp is recommended located at LS no. 41 at the
common boundary of 189/191. This will be included on a future
works programme subject to available funding.

10/07/2018

19 7003754 NEWTOWN COURT
(NC)

Dublin 17Double Yellow
Lines

Newtown court off Belcamp Lane 0Member of
the Public

Recommended Following  a request from the Traveller Accomodation Unit.It is
recommended that double yellow lines be provided on Newtown
Court on both sides of the carriageway, from the junction of
Belcamp Lane running northwards for 240m to the entrance gate
posts at Newtown Court.

11/07/2018

20 7003950 BRIARFIELD ROAD
(NC)

Dublin 5Double Yellow
Lines

at the junction of Briarfield Villas
and Briarfield Road.

0TDRecommended Following investigation it is recommended that double yellow lines
be provided.on Briarfield Road on the southern corner at 2a
Briarfield Road. Located from 5m west of the pedestrian entrance
gate around the corner to the ramp sign. A distance of15m.This
measure is to improve visibility and conflict with approaching
traffic.

25/07/2018

21 7003951 SAINT BRENDAN'S
DRIVE (NC)

Dublin 5Traffic Calming Confusion from drivers coming
off the malahide road in relation
to who has the right of way.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Under the road traffic act, traffic on a road ending at a T junction
must give way to traffic from either direction on the other road. A
yield sign is in situ at the junction with Gracefield Road.
Notwithstanding the proximity of this junction with the roundabout
and the Slip road to St. Brigid's Road which make for difficult
access during peak, There should be no confusion over right of
way. The onus is on motorists to drive with due care and observe
the Rules of the Road.Therefore further measures are not  not
recommended.

25/07/2018

22 7003958 MIDDLE THIRD (NC) Dublin 5Double Yellow
Lines

DYLs to prevent dangerous
parking in proximity to Killester
DART Station.

0CouncillorRecommended Following inspection, it is recommended that double yellow lines
be provided on the western side of middle third,running
northwards from the common boundary of 38/39 for a distance of
59m to the common boundary of 34/35.This measure is to ensure
traffic flow and prevent parking on the footpath.

25/07/2018

P
age 77



Page 4 of 5

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

06/09/2018
North Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 17/09/2018)
32 Items

23 7003988 CROMCASTLE
GREEN (NC)

Dublin 5Double Yellow
Lines

Outside 2A Cromcastle Green 0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Double yellow lines are provided as a measure to maintain a
through flow of traffic and to prevent congestion. They operate on
a 24 hour basis and are non-discriminatory. Under The Road
Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2)
g;
“A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position or manner
that will result in the vehicle obstructing an entrance or an exit for
vehicles to or from a premises, save with the consent of the
occupier of such premises;”
This request does not meet the criteria for the provision of double
yellow lines and is therefore not recommended.

26/07/2018

24 7004013 CARNDONAGH PARK
(NC)

Dublin 13Children Crossing
Sign

‘Children At Play’ road safety
signs to be erected on a
residential street in Dublin 13

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Cardonagh Park is an internal estate Road.W 142"children
crossing"signs are provided only at the entrance to housing
estates from a main traffic route. A W142 sign has been provided
at the entrance to Newbrook Road. Additional signage is therefore
not recommended.

30/07/2018

25 7004117 MARYFIELD DRIVE
(NC)

Dublin 5Double Yellow
Lines

DYLs or solid white line
requested.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

Double yellow lines have been  provided from a point opposite the
pedestrian access to the Business Park running southwest for
10m in order to facilitate buses turning the corner.On residential
roads with on street parking it is inevitable for vehicles to straddle
the centre of the carriageway.Centre line markings are not
provided in urban or residential estates where speed limits are
restricted to 50k/hr or less , where the onus is on the motorist to
drive with due care and at a speed appropriate for the prevailing
conditions.Therefore further measures in this regard are not
recommended.

02/08/2018

26 7004119 GRANGE ABBEY
GROVE (NC)

Dublin 13Continuous White
Line (Extend)

Extend white line turning right
when entering estate.

0TDRecommended A continuous white line previously existed from Grange Road
southwards to the T junction of Grange Abbey Grove,19m of
same was not renewed following resurfacing.As there is no stat
for this measure, it is recommended that a continuous white line
be provided from the junction of Grange Road running southwards
for 34m.

02/08/2018

27 7004120 THE HOLE IN THE
WALL ROAD (NC)

Dublin 13Roundabout
(Rescind)

Remove roundabout and have
junction controlled by traffic lights
only.

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

There are no plans to remove the roundabout at the junction of
Hole in the Wall).
The National Transport Authority Design section commissioned a
report by CSEA on the design of the Junction, in 2013. One of the
options developed by the Consultants was to remove the
roundabout and replace it with a signalised junction, but the report
also recommended some interim measures that could  be put in
place in the short term.
Due to funding constraints the full signalisation of the junction will
not take place. Pedestrian Crossings on both the northern and
western arm of the junction will be provided and commissioned in
the Autumn. This and the completion of the bus lane will improve
pedestrian, cycling, public transport and general traffic facilities on
the approaches to the roundabout.

02/08/2018

P
age 78



Page 5 of 5

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

06/09/2018
North Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 17/09/2018)
32 Items

28 7004164 GRANGE ABBEY
ROAD (NC)

Dublin 13Traffic Calming 0InternalRecommended Following speed checks undertaken on 13/14 July 2018. The 85th
percentile speed was 59 k/hr. This indicates that traffic calming is
warranted. It is therefore recommended that 7 no 4.5m speed
ramps be provided, located at Lamp Standards 2,7,9,11,13,15
&18. This measure will be included on a future works programme
subject to funding becoming available.

07/08/2018

29 7004293 CALDERWOOD
ROAD (NC)

Dublin 9Traffic Calming Along the road 0TDNot
Recommended

Following speed checks undertaken on Calderwood Road on
09/10 /08/2018 between 07.00 hrs and 08.00hrs, The 85th
percentile speed was 32k/hr. This percentile speed together with
a  traffic volume not meeting the warrant,indicates that traffic
calming is not required and is therefore not recommended.

15/08/2018

30 90046642 SP_34797 SLADEMORE
AVENUE (NC)

Dublin 13Roundabout
(Rescind)

Change location of
new roundabout on Slademore
Ave.

1CouncillorNot
Recommended

The  roundabout in question has been provided  in a position
centered  on the junction  and equidistant 5m from the three kerb
lines between each arm. No approach to the roundabout has
priority, traffic must yield on every approach to the roundabout
and signage and associated road markings have been provided to
that effect. Relocating the roundabout in any direction would leave
at least one arm misaligned and render the roundabout
ineffective. Therefore  further measures are not recommended.

03/11/2016

31 90051914 SP_40828 BELMONT PARK (NC) Dublin 5Stop Line request for junction to be marked
exiting Belmont onto Raheny

0TDRecommended Following investigation it is recommended that an RRM 017 stop
line and associated continuous white line be provided at the exit
to Belmont Park in order to delineate stopping line and centre of
carriageway (Stop sign is already in place).

13/10/2017

32 7004449 GRACE PARK ROAD
(NW/NC)

Dublin 9Double Yellow
Lines

DYLs for both side of road, to
assist with access from Grace
Park Wood estate & All Hallows
path.

0CouncillorRecommended Following investigation it is recommended that double yellow lines
be provided on the eastern side of Grace Park Road. Located
from the existing speed ramp running northwards for 16m to
entrance of Grace Park Wood. Also from the existing double
yellow lines adjacent to the pedestrian entrance gate of Saint
Joseph's School for Visually Impaired running southwards for18m.
to the southern side of Lamp Standard no.5.
On the western side of the carriageway, parking restrictions are in
situ from the pedestrian crossing running southwards for
18m.which facilitate access to All Hallows.
Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section
36 paragraph(2) i, it is illegal to park”on a footway,a grass margin
or a median strip”;It is not recommended to introduce further
parking restrictions where restrictions are already covered under
the law,  as this would lead to a proliferation of same and
additional expense due to maintenance etc.
Infringements of the Act should be referred to the Gardai and
Dublin Street Parking Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement
under the law.

22/08/2018

P
age 79




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of NCAC meeting held on 16th July, 2018,
	Minutes

	2 Minutes of Special North Central Area Committee meeting held on 26th July 2018
	3 Questions to the Area Manager
	4c Update on  Glin Boxing Club
	4d Oscar Traynor Update
	4e Cromcastle Update
	4f Proposed grant of Lease of the premises  55 Gracefield Road, Artane, Dublin 5 to Tus Nua Artane Coolock Family Resource Centre Company CLG
	Map

	4g Role of Elected members in Planning process
	4i Housing Allocations Quarterly report for July 2018.
	4j Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Area Committee Report
	4k Naming & Numbering Proposal  1-3 Castle Mews, Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3 A new residential housing development on a site at the rear of 134-136 Castle Avenue, Clontarf, Dublin 3
	Drawing RM37037

	6a Minutes of TAG meeting held on 15th August 2018
	6b Minutes of TAG meeting held on 28th August 2018



